
 

Lloyd White 

Head of Democratic Services 

London Borough of Hillingdon, 

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 

www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

 Putting our residents first 

   

North Planning 
Committee 

  

To Councillors on the Committee 
 
Councillor Edward Lavery (Chairman) 

Councillor John Morgan (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Jem Duducu 

Councillor Duncan Flynn 

Councillor Raymond Graham 

Councillor Henry Higgins 

Councillor Manjit Khatra 

Councillor John Oswell 

Councillor Jazz Dhillon 

 

   

Date: TUESDAY, 30 MAY 2017 
 

 

Time: 7.00 PM, OR UPON THE 
RISING OF THE MAJOR 
APPLICATIONS PLANNING 
COMMITTEE, WHICHEVER 
IS LATEST 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

  
Published: Friday 19 May 2017 

 Contact: Elizabeth Penny 
Tel: 01895 250185 
Email: epenny@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 
This Agenda is available online at: 
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=116&Year=0 

Public Document Pack



Useful information for  

residents and visitors 
 

Watching & recording this meeting 
 
You can watch the public (Part 1) part of this meeting 
on the Council's YouTube channel, live or archived 
after the meeting. Residents and the media are also 
welcome to attend in person, and if they wish, report 
on the public part of the meeting. Any individual or 
organisation may record or film proceedings as long 
as it does not disrupt proceedings.  
 
It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be 
met. The Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all 
attending and an area for the media to report. The officer shown on the front of this agenda should 
be contacted for further information and will be available to assist. 
 
When present in the room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices. 

 
Travel and parking 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the 
Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, with 
the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short walk 
away. Limited parking is available at the Civic 
Centre. For details on availability and how to book a 
parking space, please contact Democratic Services. 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee Room.  
 

Accessibility 
 
For accessibility options regarding this agenda 
please contact Democratic Services.  For those 
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is 
available for use.  
 

Emergency procedures 
 
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest FIRE 
EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless instructed by a 
Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued 
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, 
should make their way to the signed refuge locations. 

 

 



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings 

 

 

Security and Safety information 
Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the 
fire alarm will sound continuously.  If there is a 
SECURITY INCIDENT follow the instructions issued 
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshall or a Security 
Officer.  

 

Mobile telephones – Please switch off any mobile 

telephones before the meeting.  
 

Petitions and Councillors 
Petitions – Those who have organised a petition of 
20 or more people who live, work or study in the 
borough, can speak at a Planning Committee in 
support of or against an application.  Petitions 
must be submitted in writing to the Council in 
advance of the meeting.  Where there is a 
petition opposing a planning application there is 
also the right for the applicant or their agent to 
address the meeting for up to 5 minutes.   

Ward Councillors – There is a right for local 
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about 
applications in their Ward.  

Committee Members – The planning committee is 
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet 
in public every three weeks to make decisions on 
applications. 

 

How the Committee meeting works 
The Planning Committees consider the most 
complex and controversial proposals for 
development or enforcement action.  

Applications for smaller developments such as 
householder extensions are generally dealt with 
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated 
powers.  

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which 
comprises reports on each application 

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at 
the beginning of the meeting.   

The procedure will be as follows:-  

1. The Chairman will announce the report;  

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a 
presentation of plans and photographs;  

3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser 
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant 
followed by any Ward Councillors; 

 

4. The Committee may ask questions of the 

petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;  

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek 
clarification from officers;  

6. The Committee will vote on the 
recommendation in the report, or on an 
alternative recommendation put forward by a 
Member of the Committee, which has been 
seconded. 

 

About the Committee’s decision 
The Committee must make its decisions by 
having regard to legislation, policies laid down 
by National Government, by the Greater London 
Authority – under ‘The London Plan’ and 
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained 
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and 
supporting guidance.  The Committee must also 
make its decision based on material planning 
considerations and case law and material 
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s 
report and any representations received.  

Guidance on how Members of the Committee 
must conduct themselves when dealing with 
planning matters and when making their 
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of 
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s 
Constitution.  

When making their decision, the Committee 
cannot take into account issues which are not 
planning considerations such a the effect of a 
development upon the value of surrounding 
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself 
is not sufficient ground for refusal of 
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to 
the design of the property.  When making a 
decision to refuse an application, the Committee 
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for 
refusal  based on material planning 
considerations.   

If a decision is made to refuse an application, 
the applicant has the right of appeal against the 
decision.  A Planning Inspector appointed by the 
Government will then consider the appeal.  
There is no third party right of appeal, although 
a third party can apply to the High Court for 
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3 
months of the date of the decision.  

 



 

 

Agenda 
 

 

 

Chairman's Announcements 

1 Apologies for Absence  

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting  

3 Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent  

4 To confirm that the items of business marked Part 1 will be considered 
in public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private 

 

PART I - Members, Public and Press 
 
Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the 
Chairman may vary this.  The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the 
address of the premises or land concerned. 
 

Applications with a Petition 
 

 Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page 

5 Thurga, 19 Glenalla 
Road  
 
43884/APP/2017/401 
 
 

Eastcote & 
East 
Ruislip 
 

Single storey rear extension, 
enlargement of roof to create 
additional habitable roof space to 
include 4 side dormers and 
conversion of dwelling into 1 x 2-
bed and 1 x 3-bed self-contained 
flats with associated parking, 
amenity space and installation of 
vehicular crossover to front 
 
Recommendation: Refusal 

1 - 12 
 

106 - 114 

6 38 & 40 Ducks Hill 
Road  
 
71798/APP/2017/803 
 
 

Northwood 
 

Erection of a three storey building 
to create 9 x 3-bed self-contained 
flats with car parking within 
basement, with associated parking 
and landscaping, installation of 
vehicular crossover to front and 
detached summerhouse to rear, 
involving demolition of existing 
houses (Resubmission). 
 
Recommendation: Refusal 

13 - 32 
 

115 - 136  



 

7 Land to the rear of 
Robins Hearne & 
Littlewood, Ducks Hill 
Road  
 
41674/APP/2017/381 
 
 

Northwood 
 

Erection of 4 x two storey, 4-bed 
detached dwellings with 
associated parking and amenity 
space (Outline application for 
access and layout with some 
matters reserved). 
 
Recommendation: Refusal 

33 - 48 
 

137 - 144 

8 7 Hedgeside Road  
 
38605/APP/2017/554 
 
 

Northwood 
 

Part two storey, part single storey 
rear extension, conversion of 
roofspace to habitable use, porch 
to front, part conversion of garage 
and alterations to front and rear 
landscaping. 
 
Recommendation: Refusal 

49 - 58 
 

145 - 155 

9 1 Manor House Drive  
 
27306/APP/2016/4520 
 
 

Northwood 
 

Two storey building with habitable 
roofspace to consist of 6 x 2-bed 
flats with associated amenity 
space and parking, involving 
demolition of existing dwelling. 
 
Recommendation: Refusal 

59 - 70 
 

156 - 166 

 

Applications without a Petition 
 

 Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page 

10 The Old Shooting Box, 
High Road  
 
20652/APP/2017/905 
 
 

Eastcote & 
East 
Ruislip 
 

Repositioning of existing vehicle 
entrance and associated ground 
works to existing residential 
property. 
 
Recommendation: Approval 

71 - 80 
 

167 - 172 

11 The Old Shooting Box, 
High Road  
 
20652/APP/2017/906 
 
 

Eastcote & 
East 
Ruislip 
 

Repositioning of existing vehicle 
entrance and associated ground 
works to existing residential 
dwelling 
 
Recommendation: Approval 

81 - 86 
 

173 - 178 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

PART II - Members Only 
 
The reports listed below are not made public because they contain confidential or 
exempt information under paragraph 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended. 
 

12 Enforcement Report  87 - 92 

13 Enforcement Report  93 - 98 

14 Enforcement Report 99 - 104 

 

PART I - Plans for North Planning Committee                    105 - 178  

 



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

THURGA, 19 GLENALLA ROAD RUISLIP 

Single storey rear extension, enlargement of roof to create additional habitable
roof space to include 4 side dormers and conversion of dwelling into 1 x 2-bed
and 1 x 3-bed self-contained flats with associated parking, amenity space and
installation of vehicular crossover to front

03/02/2017

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 43884/APP/2017/401

Drawing Nos: Design & Access Statement
ASEA/2016/327/PP/01
ASEA/2016/327/PP/02
ASEA/2016/327/PP/03
ASEA/2016/338/PP/04
ASEA/2016/327/PP/05
ASEA/2017/338/PP/06

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The application seeks full planning permission for erection of a single storey rear
extension, enlargement of roof to create additional habitable roof space to include 4 x side
dormers and conversion of dwelling into 1 x 2-bed and 1 x 3-bed self-contained flats with
associated parking, amenity space and installation of vehicular crossover to front.

The site is within the developed area and the principle of residential redevelopment is
acceptable.  However, the locality is characterised by single-storey detached and single
family occupied dwellings.   The extensions significantly increase the intensity of
development on this small site. Its close proximity to the boundaries, in particular, No. 21
Glenalla Road, would make it appear particularly cramped and the insignificant gap would
make the site and No. 21 Glenalla Road appear to be a single building when seen from the
street. There is limited opportunity for landscaping to the front of the site to soften and
reduce the impact of development.

It is therefore considered that the proposal would be materially harmful to the character of
the local area, resulting in an incongruous form of development.

It would also harm the amenities of occupiers of adjoining dwellings by reason of
overlooking and loss of privacy.

Finally, it is also considered that the proposal would not provide sufficient or functional car
parking which would result in pressure for on-street parking and a risk to highway safety. 

It is therefore recommended for refusal.

The application is referred to committee as a result of a petition of 45 signatures.

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

2. RECOMMENDATION

09/03/2017Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NON2

NON2

NON2

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by reason of  the size and scale of the side dormer windows
would result in a cramped, unduly intrusive, visually prominent over-development of the
site. The proposal would therefore be detrimental to the character and appearance of the
adjoining properties and the visual amenity of the street scene and the wider area,
contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies
(November 2012), Policies BE13, BE19 and BE22 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies 3.5 and 7.4 of the London Plan (2016), the
Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts and the
NPPF.

The proposed building by virtue of its size, scale, bulk, height and proximity, would be
detrimental to the amenities of the adjoining occupiers at 17 and 21 Glenalla Road, by
reason of material loss of privacy. Therefore the proposal would be contrary to policies
BE19, BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Documents HDAS:
Residential Extensions and HDAS: Residential Layouts.

The proposal has not demonstrated that sufficient off street parking/manoeuvring/access
arrangements would be provided, and therefore the development is considered to result in
substandard car parking provision to the Councils approved car parking standard, leading
to on-street parking/queuing to the detriment of pedestrian and highway safety and
contrary to Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012), to Hillingdon's Adopted Parking Standards (Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the Council's adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

1

2

3

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated
with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

AM7

AM14

BE13

BE19

BE20

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Page 2



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I59 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies3

4

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the Eastern side of Glenalla Road and comprises a
detached bungalow with a hipped roof to the front and rear of the property. There is a
single-storey flat roofed rear extension. The principal elevation of the property faces South
West.

There is a driveway to the side and a detached garage/outbuilding to the rear alongside the
boundary with No. 17 Glenalla Road. No.17 Glenalla Road lies to the North and is a

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from the 'Saved'
UDP 2012, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and
other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

H4

OE8

HDAS-LAY

LPP 3.3

LPP 3.4

LPP 3.5

LPP 3.8

LPP 5.13

LPP 5.14

NPPF1

NPPF6

NPPF7

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Mix of housing units

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006
(2016) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

(2016) Housing Choice

(2016) Sustainable drainage

(2016) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF - Requiring good design

Page 3



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

detached bungalow, which is similar in appearance to the application property. To the
South lies No.21 Glenalla Road, also a detached bungalow. The site has an extensive rear
garden, laid to lawn. There is a substantial tree/hedge to the rear boundary and the side
boundaries comprise close-boarded fences of approximately 1.8 metres in height.

The street scene comprises detached bungalows, some of which have had roof
extensions including side dormer windows. The application site lies within the Developed
Area, as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

An application for erection of two storey building to provide 4 x 2 bed self-contained flats
with associated parking, involving demolition of existing dwelling was withdrawn in 2016.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposed scheme involves erection of a single storey rear extension, enlargement of
roof to create additional habitable roof space to include 4 x side dormers and conversion of
dwelling into 1 x 2-bed and 1 x 3-bed self-contained flats with associated parking, amenity
space and installation of vehicular crossover to front.

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

AM7

AM14

BE13

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Part 2 Policies:

43884/APP/2016/2760 Thurga, 19 Glenalla Road Ruislip 

Erection of two storey building to provide 4 x 2 bed self-contained flats with associated parking,

involving demolition of existing dwelling

16-11-2016Decision: Withdrawn

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 4



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

BE24

BE38

H4

OE8

HDAS-LAY

LPP 3.3

LPP 3.4

LPP 3.5

LPP 3.8

LPP 5.13

LPP 5.14

NPPF1

NPPF6

NPPF7

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Mix of housing units

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

(2016) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

(2016) Housing Choice

(2016) Sustainable drainage

(2016) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF - Requiring good design

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

Internal Consultees

Trees and Landscape - This site is occupied by a bungalow which is characteristic of this residential
street. The whole of the front garden has been paved over to provide off-street parking, which is

External Consultees

Neighbours were notified on 13/03/2017 and a site notice was displayed on 16/03/2017. 

By the end of the consultation period a petition of 45 signatures,  25 objections and 1 comment were
received raising the following issues:-

(1) The development is out of keeping and character with the surrounding area which is
characterised by single-storey development;
(2) The design is poor and does not accord with the predominant character of development in the
street.
(3) The development will set a precedent;
(4) The development does not have enough on-site parking and will generate an unacceptable level
of on-street parking in an area of parking stress;
(5) The traffic generation will raise issues of safety and will make servicing of other properties in the
street worse.

OFFICER COMMENT: The issues raised are discussed in the main report.

Page 5



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The NPPF has a requirement to encourage the effective use of land by re-using previously
developed land. The site lies within an established residential area where there is no
objection in principle to the intensification of the residential use of the site, however, this is
subject to all other material planning considerations being acceptable, in accordance with
the national, regional and local policies.

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (2016) seeks to ensure that the new development takes into
account local context and character, the design principles in Chapter 7 and public transport
capacity. Development should optimise housing output for different types of location within
the relative density range shown in Table 3.2. Development proposals which compromise
this policy should be resisted.

The density matrix, however, is only of limited value when looking at small scale
development such as that proposed with this application. In such cases, it is often more
appropriate to consider how the development harmonises with its surroundings and its
impact on adjoining occupiers.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Furthermore policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) resist any development
which would fail to harmonise with the existing street scene or would fail to safeguard the
design of existing and adjoining sites.

The NPPF Paragraph 60 states that planning decisions should not attempt to impose
architectural styles or particular tastes and they should not stifle innovation, originality of
initiative through unsubstantiated requirements to conform to certain development forms of
styles. It is, however, proper to seek to promote or reinforce local distinctiveness.

detrimental to the character and appearance of the street - and contrary to Hillingdon's design
guidance for front gardens. COMMENT This application follows the withdrawal of a previous
application ref. 2016/2760, the scope of which was far more ambitious. Further to previous
comments which were critical, the extent of this proposal is more modest, with most of the
development extending upwards within the footprint of the building. The parking arrangement in the
front, for two cars only, together with re-introduced soft landscape strips / boundary hedges
addresses previous landscape criticisms. RECOMMENDATION If the application is recommended
for approval, there is no objection subject to conditions RES9 (parts 1,2,4,5 and 6).

Highways and Traffic - The cross over as shown would result in a vehicle driving over the footway to
manoeuvre into the parking space. An even wider cross over cannot be supported. The Council's
parking standards require 2 car parking spaces for a three bedroom flat, as such the development
ought to provide 3 car parking spaces. The application as currently presented cannot be supported
on highway grounds.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 6



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08 Impact on neighbours

Paragraph 61 states that visual appearance and the architecture of individual buildings are
very important factors, securing high quality and inclusive design goes beyond aesthetic
considerations. Therefore planning decisions should address the connections between
people and places and the integration of new development into the natural, built and historic
environment.

Paragraph 63 states that great weight should be given to outstanding or innovative designs
but paragraph 64 states that permission should be refused for development of poor design
that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an
area and the way it functions. 

Section 7 of the HDAS Residential Extensions places significant weight on the need for
dormer extensions to be subordinate to the main dwelling.   The existing dwelling has small
side dormers.  These will be replaced by two large dormer windows on both sides.
These will be almost full height and will very little set in from the eaves.    The hip to gable
conversion to the front elevation adds considerably to the bulk of development.  The result,
when viewed from the street is a substantial area of flat roof and a significant alteration to
the scale and appearance of the dwelling. This is considered to be harmful to the street
scheme.  The close proximity of  No. 21 Glenalla Road means that the developments
would be effectively merged into one building when seen from many public viewing angles
in Glenalla Road.

Overall, the proposal is therefore contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13, BE19 and BE22 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), the Council's
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts and Policies 3.5 and 7.4 of
the London Plan.

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) seeks to
safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents in a number of ways. The effect of the
siting, bulk and proximity of a new building on the outlook and residential amenity of these
adjoining occupiers are considered under Policy BE21, whilst potential impacts on
daylight/sunlight (Policy BE20) and privacy (Policy BE24) are also assessed.

Paragraph 4.9 of the SPD, HDAS: Residential Layouts further advises that all residential
developments and amenity spaces should receive adequate daylight and sunlight and that
new development should be designed to minimise the negative impact of overbearing and
overshadowing proposals. It goes on to advise that 'where a two storey building abuts a
property or its garden, adequate distance should be maintained to overcome possible
domination'. Generally, 15 m will be the minimum acceptable distance between buildings.
Furthermore a minimum of 21 m overlooking distance should be maintained. Any
development must also be considered against the detailed advise in the SPD HDAS:
Residential Extensions which assists in determining the impact of redevelopment on
neighbours amenities. 

Paragraph 4.11 of the SPD gives advice on sunlight and daylight considerations, and that a
45 degree line of sight principle will be applied to new development, to ensure the amenity
of adjoining occupiers and future occupiers are protected. Paragraph 4.12 of the SPD
requires a minimum of 21 m distance between facing habitable room windows in new and
adjacent properties to prevent overlooking and loss of privacy.

Paragraph 3.4 of the HDAS Residential extensions states that for detached houses an

Page 7



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09

7.10

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

extension up to 4 m deep is acceptable. Paragraph 3.6  states that in many areas, a flat
roof single storey extension will be acceptable. These should not exceed 3 m in height. The
proposal involves a flat roof extension of 3.5 metres deep and 3 metres high.  It replaces a
conservatory. This conforms to the guidance and will produce a subordinate extension.

Whilst the proposal raises no adverse issues in terms of distance to properties to the front
and rear, where it will be seen across the street or there is strong intervening screenings,
there are major concerns relating to the impact of the development on the adjoining
propertes, no 17 and 21 Glenalla Road. There are side facing windows in No. 17 along the
common boundary with the application site both at ground floor and a dormer window
within the roof. The proposed development includes 2 upper floor bedroom windows facing
towards No. 17.  These are not shown as obscure glazed.  This is in addition to the
substantial re-profiling of the roof which includes both front and rear alterations. There are
upper floor windows facing towards No. 21, which has a dormer window facing towards the
site. This appears to serve a bedroom.  One of the proposed windows serves a bathroom
and could be obscure glazed.  Consideration has been given to whether it is practical to
obscure glaze bedroom windows. However, this is likely to result in an unsatisfactory
internal living environment.    Overall, the development is likely to produce an unsatisfactory
living environment for neighbours.

The rear extension has no side windows.  Given that in terms of depth and height it meets
HDAS guidance, it is considered that no adverse issues arise in this regard. 

As such, it is considered that the proposed building would result in an un-neighbourly form
of development, resulting in a material loss of residential amenity in terms of loss of
privacy. Therefore the proposal would be contrary to Policies BE19, BE20, BE21 and BE24
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the
Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Documents HDAS: Residential Extensions and
HDAS: Residential Layouts.

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015 and they
have been adopted by The Mayor of London in the form of Housing Standards Minor
Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016). This sets out how the existing policies
relating to Housing Standards in The London Plan should be applied from March 2016.
Table 3.3 sets out how the minimum space standards stemming from the policy specified
in the 2012 Housing SPG should be interpreted in relation to the national standard.

Table 3.3 of the Amendment specifies that the minimum internal floor space area/standard
for a 2 bedroom (3 person) flat is 61 square metres.  For a 3 - bed flat the maximum
standard is 95 square metres.  The proposed 2 bed flat is 82 square metres and the 3 bed
flat is 121 square metres. In both cases the standard is exceeded.

Paragraph 4.17 of the SPD requires developments to incorporate usable, attractively laid
out and conveniently located garden space in relation to the flats they serve. The Council's
minimum requirement is for 25 sq m per flat of amenity space. The proposal provides
shared amenity space of sufficient size commensurate to the size of the units.

The cross over as shown would result in a vehicle driving over the footway to manoeuvre
into the parking space. An even wider cross over cannot be supported. The Council's

Page 8



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning Obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

parking standards require 2 car parking spaces for a three bedroom flat, as such the
development ought to provide 3 car parking spaces. The application as currently presented
cannot be supported on highway grounds

With this in mind, the current proposals would be contrary to Policies AM7 and AM14 of the
adopted Hillingdon Local Plan, 2012, (Part 2).

It is considered that the design is harmful to the character of the area.  The issues are
discussed in the relevant areas of the report

If the scheme were to be considered acceptable a condition would be recommended to
secure the development was built to M4(2) in accordance with Policy 3.8c of the London
Plan.

Not applicable.

This site is occupied by a bungalow which is characteristic of this residential street. The
whole of the front garden has been paved over to provide off-street parking, which is
detrimental to the character and appearance of the street - and contrary to Hillingdon's
design guidance for front gardens. This application follows the withdrawal of a previous
application ref. 2016/2760, the scope of which was far more ambitious. Further to previous
comments which were critical, the extent of this proposal is more modest, with most of the
development extending upwards within the footprint of the building. The parking
arrangement in the front, for two cars only, together with re-introduced soft landscape
strips / boundary hedges addresses previous landscape criticisms.  If the application is
recommended for approval, there is no objection subject to conditions RES9 (parts 1,2,4,5
and 6).

Not applicable as recommended for refusal.

Not applicable as recommended for refusal.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

The issues raised are dealt with throughout the report.

The application is recommended for refusal.   The application is subject to CIL but no
additional Planning Obligations issues arise.

Not applicable.

The Council's Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule was adopted on 1st
August 2014. The additional habitable floor space created will be chargeable at £95 per
square metre.

On the 1st April 2012 the Mayoral Community Structure Levy came into force. The London

Page 9



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Borough of Hillingdon falls within Charging Zone 2, therefore, a flat rate fee of £35 per
square metre would be required for each net additional square metre added to the site as
part of the development.

The development would result in an additional 51.5 metres of development which would
generate a Hillingdon CIL charge of £4892.5 and a Mayoral charge of £1802.5, a total of
£6695

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned. 

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.

Page 10



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

None.

10. CONCLUSION

The site is within the developed area and the principle of residential redevelopment is
acceptable.  However, the locality is characterised by single-storey detached and single
family occupied dwellings.   The extensions significantly increase the intensity of
development on this small site. Its close proximity to the boundaries, in particular, No. 21
Glenalla Road, would make it appear particularly cramped and the insignificant gap would
make the site and No. 21 Glenalla Road appear to be a single building when seen from the
street. There is limited opportunity for landscaping to the front of the site to soften and
reduce the impact of development.

It is therefore considered that the proposal would be materially harmful to the character of
the local area, resulting in an incongruous form of development.

It would also harm the amenities of occupiers of adjoining dwellings by reason of
overlooking and loss of privacy.

Finally, it is also considered that the proposal would not provide sufficient or functional car
parking which would result in pressure for on-street parking and a risk to highway safety.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan (2016)
The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)
Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Extensions
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon
National Planning Policy Framework

Cris Lancaster 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 11



4
2

7

50.3m

50 65

50.0m

51

1
6

19

2
4

11

3
3

3
8

2
6

M
S
E
Y
 C

L
O

S
E

6

82

Post

1
4

2

64
60a

1

66

2

45.7m

1
7

84

G
L
E

N
A

L
L
A

 R
O

A
D

Posts

11

15

F
F

R
H

10

9

2

3
5

1
c

2
c

2
d

2
a

2
b

15a

L
A

R
N

E
 R

O
A

D

2
7

3
2

17

1
6

25

1

1
5

´

May 2017

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

Thurga,

19 Glengalla Road

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

43884/APP/2017/401

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 12



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

38 AND 40 DUCKS HILL ROAD NORTHWOOD 

Erection of a three storey building to create 9 x 3-bed self-contained flats with
car parking within basement, with associated parking and landscaping,
installation of vehicular crossover to front and detached summerhouse to
rear, involving demolition of existing houses (Resubmission).

03/03/2017

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 71798/APP/2017/803

Drawing Nos: 02 B - Landscape Concept Plan
106 A -  38 Ducks Hill Road Existing Elevations
107 A - 40 Ducks Hill Road Existing Elevations
108 A - Existing Adjoining Elevations
301 B - Proposed Basement Floor Plan
302 D - Proposed Ground Floor Plan
303 D - Proposed First Floor Plan
304 D - Proposed Second Floor Plan
04 - Indicative Summerhouse
306 C - Proposed North East Elevation
307 D - Proposed South East Elevation
308 D - Proposed South West Elevation
309 D - Proposed North West Elevation
330 A - Daylight and Sunlight Elevations
254 A - Proposed Street Scene
305 C - Proposed Roof Plan
03 B - Proposed Sections
Planning Statement - March 2017
Flatted Development Report - June 2016
161560-001 B - Transport Assessment and Appendices
Preliminary Ecological Report and Appendices
Highways Statement
Tree Survey
310 A - Proposed Main Entrance Gates Elevation
100 C - Location Plan
Design & Access Statement

Date Plans Received: 03/03/2017

07/03/2017

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The proposed redevelopment of the site would result in the loss of two large and spacious
family homes and their replacement with flatted development. Considerable amounts of
flatted development has been constructed within close proximity of the site, particularly to
the south, to the extent that he threshold of 10% of original dwelling plots (that still engage
within the street scene) being converted to flatted development has already been reached.

Allowing further flatted development would compromise the original character and
appearance of this stretch of Ducks Hill Road. 

13/03/2017Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 6

Page 13



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The northern flank wall of the proposed block of flats would also run parallel to a significant
proportion of the side boundary of No. 36 Ducks Hill Road and would therefore appear
overbearing and oppressive when viewed from the rear garden of that property.

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

NON2

NON2

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development would result in coalescence of flatted development within the
immediate surrounding area and a general over-concentration of flatted development on
this part of Ducks Hill Road. The resultant intensification in the residential use of the site
which would be detrimental to the traditional character of large, detached family homes on
Ducks Hill Road. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE 13 and BE 19 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Paragraph
3.3 of the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential
Layouts and Policy 7.4 of the London Plan (2016).

The proposed building by virtue of its height, depth and proximity to the side boundary of
the site, would be detrimental to the amenities of the adjoining occupiers at 36 Ducks Hill
Road, by reason of overbearing impact. Therefore the proposal would be contrary to
Policy BE 21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012), the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential
Extensions and Policy 7.6 of the London Plan (2016).

1

2

3.1 Site and Locality

The site is located on a residential road that is broadly characterised by large detached
dwellings that occupy generously sized plots. There is no uniform design to buildings, with
a variety of architectural designs and features present within the street scene. Buildings
are generally set well back from the highway with open or landscaped frontages,
introducing a sense of spaciousness. The street scene is also verdant in appearance
owing to the presence of grass verges and mature street trees.

More modern development has gained an increasing presence within the street scene.
Original dwelling plots have been either subdivided to provide smaller dwellings or
redeveloped in bulk as separate residential cul-de-sacs or mews. There are also a number
of flats now lining the street, these have been purpose built rather than the result of
conversions and, as such, are contained within modern buildings. Of particular note is a
coalescence of flatted development on the eastern side of the road between Teal Drive and
Glynswood Place. 

The site itself is currently occupied by two plots each of which accommodate a detached
two-storey dwelling of distinctive appearance. Both dwellings are vacant and the site has
been closed off with hoarding. There are no other significant buildings on site. The rear
garden areas are grass surfaced with no significant trees or hedging. There is a line of
recently planted Leylandii type hedging on the northern boundary shared with No. 36 Ducks
Hill Road. All site boundaries to the side and rear of the site are marked with approximately
1.8 metre high timber fencing with additional hedging and shrubbery in places.

The area to the front of the dwellings comprises a mix of grass and hard surfacing,

2. RECOMMENDATION

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 14



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

predominantly tarmac to the front of No. 38. There is a mature horse chestnut tree to front
of No. 40, adjacent to the highway.

Site levels are predominantly flat, with a very slight rise towards the rear.

For clarity, the site does not incorporate the entire rear garden of No. 40 Ducks Hill Road,
an approximately 50 metre portion, which backs on to Cygnet Close, would not be
developed. The overall site area is approximately 1800 m² (0.18 hectares).

A previous application was refused for a number of reasons, these being amenity impact,
drainage concerns and the subdivision of the former 40 Ducks Hill Road plot resulting in an
inefficient use of the site.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal involves the demolition of the two dwellings currently occupying the site and
replacement with a three-storey block of flats which will also incorporate basement level
parking for 20 cars (including 2 disabled bays) as well as storage for motorcycles and 9
bicycles. The building will house a total of 9 x 3 bedroom flats, with 3 flats on each floor. 

The building will be set back from the road and consist of three main elements organised
around a central glass atrium. Two of the elements form the frontage and this will be
staggered in appearance. The rear element will be positioned more centrally within the site,
away from site boundaries.

The main roof line of the building will be pitched with gable ends although some hipped
roofing will also be incorporated. The atrium will have a flat roof and there will also be
elements of crown roof over the main structure. The majority of the roof slopes of the
building will include flat roof dormers as the second floor accommodation is to be housed
within the roof space. Four of the upper floor units will be served by rear facing full
balconies whilst the remaining two units, which are located within the rear wing of the
block, will have juliet balconies. Ground floor properties will have their own private terraces
which will be screened with hedge planting. The remainder of the grounds will be
landscaped with a communal garden area and summer house provided.

The maximum height to ridge line will be approximately 10.9 metres with the side elevation
flanking No. 36 stepped down to approximately 9.8 metres. The staggered frontage will
measure approximately 24.7 metres in width. The overall footprint of the building will be
approximately 485 m². The combined footprint of the existing dwellings is approximately
145 m².

All flats will be accessed via the central atrium with all floors being served by stairway and
a lift.

71798/APP/2016/2997 38 And 40 Ducks Hill Road Northwood 

Erection of a three storey building to create 9 x 3-bed self-contained flats with car parking within

basement, with associated parking and landscaping, installation of vehicular crossover to front

and detached summerhouse to rear, involving demolition of existing houses.

05-01-2017Decision: Refused

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 15



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The reason relating to the plot subdivision has been reappraised and it is not considered
that this reason for refusal is reasonable as the remnant of the plot is of sufficient size for
future residential development and also benefits from a street frontage on to Cygnet Close.

The current application attempts to address all other reasons for refusal.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

AM14

AM7

AM15

AM8

BE13

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

H3

H4

EM6

OE1

OE7

OE8

LPP 3.3

LPP 3.4

LPP 3.5

LPP 3.8

New development and car parking standards.

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

Mix of housing units

(2012) Flood Risk Management

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

(2016) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

(2016) Housing Choice

Part 2 Policies:

Page 16



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

LPP 5.12

LPP 5.13

LPP 7.13

LPP 7.15

LPP 7.2

LPP 7.3

LPP 7.4

LPP 7.6

NPPF

HDAS-LAY

LDF-AH

BE18

NPP13

NPPF1

NPPF7

(2016) Flood risk management

(2016) Sustainable drainage

(2016) Safety, security and resilience to emergency

(2016) Reducing and managing noise, improving and enhancing the acoustic
environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes.

(2016) An inclusive environment

(2016) Designing out crime

(2016) Local character

(2016) Architecture

National Planning Policy Framework

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF - Requiring good design

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

Internal Consultees

Site notices were displayed adjacent to the site on Ducks Hill Road and Cygnet Close. In addition,
letters notifying of the proposed development and inviting comments were sent to neighbours.

A total of 21 letters of objection (from 10 addresses) have been received, the key points of which are
summarised below:-

- Submitted flatted development study inaccurate and misleading.
- Density to high and contrary to policy.
- Negative street scene impact
- Building line too far forward
- Vacancy of existing dwellings not a planning consideration
- Gables too high - visual dominance
- Overly bulky
- Traffic impact - poor refuse plan. Inadequate parking provision. Query over visibility splays at
entrance / exit.
- 45 degree rule breach - loss of privacy - balconies
- Gardens will be heavily surrounded.

External Consultees

No external bodies were consulted.

Page 17



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

- Flood risk due to hard landscaping.
- Land to rear will be landlocked due to TPO trees on Cygnet Close frontage.
- Overloading of infrastructure
- Deep excavation for basement could undermine foundations.
- The undeveloped land to rear needs to be maintained as attracts vermin.
- Three storeys is out of keeping with surrounding development
- Loss of garden land (backland development).
- Noise from cars in basement and balconies.
- No visitor parking
- Overshadowing at certain times of day
- Application form, planning statement and design & access statement are incorrectly filled in and is
misleading.
- Previous applications for smaller footprint have been refused.
- Mature trees removed from site.
- Applicant suggests NPPF and London Plan guidelines more relevant than local plan. My
understanding from Local Councillors is Hillingdon Policies take precedence.
- The need to remove trees is a symbol of overdevelopment.
- Summer house too close to neighbouring property and will result in noise and disruption.
- Design & Access Statement refers to emerging policies. Current policies take precedence.
- Does not provide a gap between buildings so out of keeping with surroundings.
- Extensive hard landscaping and loss of permeable areas.
- No turning area for servicing vehicles.
- Boundary fencing would be unsightly and disturb existing landscaping.
- Recommendations of ecology report not met by landscaping scheme.
- Very limited usable amenity space for future occupants.
- Materials not in keeping with surrounding red brick properties.
- Existing gardens important as provides a link between green belt land.
- A number of mature trees have been removed from the site.
- New landscaping is low level and will not provide sufficient screening.
- Design & Access Statement inaccurate and misleading.
- Loss of amenities - Overlooking. Overbearing. Overshadowing.
- No topographic survey for 40 Ducks Hill Road.
- Ecology report recommendations have not been followed.
- The development will not be compliant with lifetime homes standards
- Proposed sewage pipe will impact upon protected trees along Cygnet Close

A petition with 45 signatories that object to the application has also been received.

NORTHWOOD RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION: 

The development includes the creation of a basement for which no geotechnical or hydrological
surveys have been provided and it is not possible to determine whether the development would not
have an unacceptable impact on drainage and flood risk in accordance with Policies OE7 and OE8
and proposed Local Plan Part 2 Policy DMHD3.

Officer Response: A ground survey was carried out by GS surveys in August 2016 and has been
included in Appendix D. The ground investigation report found that significant groundwater would not
be encountered up to 4 m below the existing ground level. Groundwater was not encountered during
the investigation.

DRAINAGE OFFICER:

The Surface Water Drainage Strategy produced by by Ardent Consultant Engineers ref: 161560-03
dated March 2017 shows that a suitable scheme can be provided onsite. The proposals to reduce

Page 18



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

the run off from the site to greenfield run off rates in even an extreme rainfall event is in accordance
with government guidance.

The proposal includes a basement level. A ground survey was carried out by GS surveys in August
2016 and has been included in Appendix D. The ground investigation report found that significant
groundwater would not be encountered up to 4m below the existing ground level. Groundwater was
not encountered during the investigation.

Some consideration has been given to drainage options within the drainage
hierarchy.

Geo cellular attenuation is considered to be the most viable option for the site.
Surface water from all impermeable areas of the site will be attenuated via the storage tank which
will provide a volume of approximately 22.8m3 which can accommodate all rainfalls events up to the
1 in 100 year event with 40%
climate change. Discharge from the site will be restricted to the greenfield runoff rate of 2.5 l/s
providing 88% betterment on the 1 in 100 storm event. Calculations have been included in Appendix
E.

Discharge from the site will be connected to a Thames Water surface water sewer which will
require consent from Thames Water.

The drainage strategy will implement a pumped surface water system as the site will be lowered
below existing ground levels. A gravity system is not considered to be viable for this reason.

Surface water will be treated by a vortex separator located downstream of the attenuation tank.

The drainage system has been included in Drawing No. 161560-002C Appendix E.

A private management company will be set up to manage and maintain the drainage system. A
management and maintenance plan has been provided in Appendix F.

CONSERVATION & URBAN DESIGN OFFICER:

The Charles Voysey inspired character and street scene appearance of the proposal would be
considered in keeping with the original Arts and Crafts style that Northwood was originally developed.
The scheme has been designed to appear as two houses with a staggered building line to the front
and a glazed section connecting the two blocks to the front.

Whilst there are no objections to the style, character and appearance of the proposal there are
concerns regarding the flat roofed areas and depth of the proposed building. It would project a
substantial distance into the site increasing the developed nature of the site. The general footprint
and mass of the building would take up a significant portion of the site.

Conditions recommended regarding external materials and fenestrations.

LANDSCAPES:

Comments as per previous application.

This development was subject to a pre-application meeting where agreement in principle was
agreed in relation to landscape issues. The site is not affected by TPO or Conservation Area
designations. A Tree Report by Tree Sense has assessed the condition and value of two trees
within the front garden of number 40. T1 horse chestnut (grade B1) and T2, holly (C1) will both be

Page 19



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

The site is located within an established urban setting and would involve the redevelopment
of land that has been previously developed. The overarching objective of the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is to maintain a presumption in favour of sustainable
development. Para. 17 of the NPPF sets out a raft of core planning principles, one of which
is to encourage the effective use of land by reusing land that has been previously
developed (brownfield land), provided that it is not of high environmental value.

It is therefore considered that the principle of the redevelopment of the site is acceptable,
subject to it satisfying relevant local, regional and national planning policies. The proposal
will be assessed against these policies int he main body of this report.

The site is considered to represent a suitable example of a windfall site as defined within
para. 48 of the NPPF, the development of which would represent a more efficient use of
land as encouraged with Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (2016) and para. 1.2.25 of the
London Plan Housing SPG (2016) which recognises the crucial role small sites play in
securing housing delivery within London.

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (2016) seeks to optimise housing potential and includes a
sustainable residential quality (SRQ) matrix for calculating the optimal density of residential

safeguarded and retained as part of the development. The report includes an Arboricultural Method
Statement (section 10.1) and Tree Protection Measures. A Landscape Concept Plan, dwg. ref. 02
provides a comprehensive landscape master plan for the site which includes private patios and
communal gardens with new infrastructure planting, including trees and hedging. 

Two areas of design needing particular attention will be the detailing of the ramp to the car park with
associated retaining walls and pedestrian barriers and the bin store - which has been sited outside
the site. The bin store should be re-sited, and screened, within the site boundary. It the application is
recommended for approval, landscape conditions should be imposed to ensure that the proposals
preserve and enhance the character and appearance of the area.

HIGHWAYS:

This is a resubmission of a previously refused application (not on highway grounds) for the
redevelopment of two dwellings to create 9x3b flats on the site in Ducks Hill Road. Ducks Hill Road
is a classified road and the site is opposite Mallard Way with two existing access points. There is a
narrow footway past the two plots. The site has a PTAL of 1 (poor) which indicates there will be a
strong reliance on private cars for trip making. The applicant has supplied a revised Transport
Statement by Ardent (dated March 2017) which was supplied in support of the application. The
proposals involve demolishing the existing detached houses and constructing a block of 9 x3b flats
with basement parking. The proposed development will generate slightly more traffic than the
existing use but this is not significant. The basement contains 20 car parking spaces which is in
accordance with Council Policies. 

There are 9 cycle parking spaces but this is below Council Policy but each flat has a storage area
where a cycle could be stored. There is also a motorcycle bay provided in the basement. There is a
new refuse/recycling bin store proposed adjacent to the Ducks Hill Road frontage. A new access to
the site is proposed which will mean re-instating the footpath at the applicant's expense. The new
access has an electronic gate entrance with appropriate set backs and the sight distance for exiting
traffic is sufficient. There is a separate pedestrian entrance to the site of Ducks Hill Road. On the
basis of the above comments I have no significant highway concerns over the application.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 20



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

development of a particular site. Optimal density levels vary based on the Public Transport
Access Level (PTAL) score for the area in which the site is located, the character of the
area (central, urban or suburban) and the type of accommodation being provided (based
on the amount of habitable rooms per unit). In this instance, the site is located within a
suburban setting, given the distance from district centres, public transport hubs and main
arterial roads. The PTAL score for the site is 1b which is poor. Having consulted the matrix,
the optimal residential density for the development of this site would be between 35 and 55
units per hectare or 150 - 200 habitable rooms per hectare.

The proposal will intensify the use of the site, which is currently occupied by two detached
dwellings. The provision of 9 x 3 bedroom residential units within the site, which has an
overall area of 1811 m2 according to measurements of the submitted plans. This equates
to 50 dwellings per hectare or 200 habitable rooms per hectare.

The development is therefore at the very upper end of the spectrum but can be regarded
as representing an optimal use of the site. It is noted that residential density of Cygnet
Close is at a similar level. Particular attention is drawn to para. 1.3.49 of the London Plan
Housing SPG (2016) which states that small sites may require little land for internal
infrastructure such as internal roads, amenity space and social infrastructure, and it is
appropriate for density to reflect this. The density of the development is therefore
considered to be in keeping with that of the surrounding area and be appropriate for the
site, in accordance with Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (2016).

The site is not located within, or adjacent to, any designated Conservation Area, Area of
Special Character or Area of Archaeological Interest. There are no Listed Buildings or
Heritage Assets which would be affected directly, or have their setting impacted upon, as a
result of the proposed scheme.

There are no safeguarding concerns that are applicable to this scheme.

The rear of the site is within fairly close proximity to the green belt area which provides a
buffer between Northwood and Harefield. However the proposed development would not
interrupt or obscure any existing views out towards the green belt area as it is located
within an established built up area and is not of sufficient scale to be visible from greenbelt.
It is therefore considered that the proposed development is in accordance with Policy OL 5
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) (hereon in
referred to as the Local Plan).

The proposed development would replace two detached two-storey dwellings with a block
of flats. The building frontage is defined by two sections of three-storey buildings that are
linked by a central glazed atrium. The design has attempted to make each section
distinctive by way of using different external materials and by staggering the frontage.
These measures, combined with the setting back of the building frontage from the highway,
would serve to prevent the building from appearing monotonous or poorly defined and
would complement the mix of building designs which are a strong feature within the street
scene. The Council's Urban Design Officer has supported the street scene impact of the
proposal, regarding it as in keeping with the original Arts and Crafts style in which
Northwood was originally developed. 

The proposed building will provide accommodation on 3 floors, with third floor
accommodation largely contained within the roof of the building, assisted by the use of

Page 21



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

dormer windows. Three-storey elevation walls are confined to the gable end projections to
the front and rear of the building and the eaves height of all roofing is consistent with that of
a two-storey building. There are dwellings on Muscovy Place, adjacent to the site, with a
similar roof arrangement as well as nearby at No. 29 Ducks Hill Road ('Kirbygate') and the
flatted development at Marchbank House. The overall height of the building will not be
significantly greater than that of neighbouring two-storey properties and, therefore, will not
be to the extent that the building appears overly dominant towards those properties when
viewed within the street scene. It is noted that building heights on Ducks Hill Road fluctuate
and the proposed development is considered to be in keeping with this general pattern.

There is, however, concern in regard to the depth of the proposed building and the resultant
degree of projection towards the rear of the site. Whilst this would not be immediately
perceptible within the Ducks Hill Road street scene it will increase the prominence of the
building within the Cygnet Close street scene, closing off visual gaps maintained between
buildings and, thereby, having an urbanising impact. Whilst the rear section of the building
would be stepped in from site boundaries, it will remain visually apparent within the gap
maintained between No. 4 Cygnet Close and 5 Cygnet Close.

Para. 3.3 of the SPD for Residential Layouts requires the redevelopment of plots occupied
by individual dwellings fort flatted development to be restricted in order to prevent more
than 10% of the overall amount of buildings on a 1 km section of street from being flatted
development. This is in order to preserve a supply of larger family homes and to guard
against over-intensive development. The proposed development will be subject to this
criterion. Extant planning permissions for flatted development will be included within the
calculation.

A number of plots on Ducks Hill Road has been the subject of redevelopment to flats in
recent years, generally prior to the adoption of the Residential Layouts SPD in 2006. These
redevelopments have resulted in the loss of large family homes. Whilst the need for
smaller residential units is acknowledged by Policy H 4 of the Local Plan, a balance has to
be maintained in order to prevent the overall character of the area being permanently
altered through over-intensive flatted development. Para 3.3 of the Council's SPD for
Residential Layout sets a threshold for the redevelopment of properties on a residential
street at a ratio of 10%. In the case of a street, such as Ducks Hill Road, which is longer
than 1km, the ratio  is derived from the amount of redevelopment that has taken place on a
1 km long stretch of road, with the site itself as the mid-point. Ducks Hill Road continues
extends 300 metres northwards of the site where it meets Rickmansworth Road and it is
logical that the starting point for calculating the site redevelopment ratio is located here. As
such, in order for a full kilometre of road to be assessed, the stretch of road continuing 700
metres to the south of the site will also be included within the calculation. 

Residential development on this stretch of road that is part of Cygnet Close Way, Eaton
Gate, Mallard Way, Northgate, Opulens Place, Manor House Drive and Teal Drive will not
be included within the calculation. Denville Hall has also been omitted as it appears to have
been in use as a retirement home prior to 1948. Flatted development will be counted on the
basis of the number of original residential plots which it replaced. Overall, 64 original
individual plots are applicable to the study and will be included within the assessment. The
following plots have been redeveloped or have extant planning permission for
redevelopment:-

- 31 - 35 Ducks Hill Road - Replacement of three dwellings with flatted development
(44987/APP/2001/404);

Page 22



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

- 50 Ducks Hill Road - Replacement of single dwelling with flatted development
(45985/A/99/0766);

- 64 Ducks Hill Road - Replacement of single dwelling with flatted development
(45985/A/99/0766);

- 89 Ducks Hill Road - Replacement of single dwelling with flatted development
(47304/APP/2006/3332);

- 91 Ducks Hill Road - Replacement of single dwelling with flatted development
(45234/APP/2014/2613);

- 95 Ducks Hill Road - Replacement of single dwelling with flatted development
(9241/APP/2000/1551);

- 97 - 101 Ducks Hill Road - Replacement of three dwellings with flatted development
(50537/D/98/1685);

- 104 Ducks Hill Road - Replacement of single dwelling with flatted development
(18072/APP/2002/1934);

- 103 - 107 Ducks Hill Road - Replacement of three dwellings with flatted development
(64345/APP/2012/1966);

It is noted that the developments at 31 -35, 103 - 107 and 91 Ducks Hill Road were
approved after the Residential Layouts SPD had been adopted in 2006. However, these
sites had both benefited from earlier planning permissions for flatted development.

All other demolitions within the assessed area have been replaced by single dwellings.
Therefore, 15 single dwelling plots along the 1 km stretch of Ducks Hill Road Road have
been replaced with flatted development whilst 49 remain occupied by single dwellings.

This presents a ratio of 23%, already well in excess of the 10% threshold, owing primarily
to pre-2006 development. Allowing a further loss of a two dwellings to flatted development
would increase the ratio to 27%, representing a significant proportion of development facing
on to the street.

It is considered that whilst the threshold itself may not be regarded as a determining factor,
it directly relates to Local Plan policies BE 13 and OE 1 and London Plan Policy 7.4 and
which seek to safeguard the established character and appearance of the surrounding
area. The Council has consistently refused applications which breach the 10% threshold
and will continue to take this stance to prevent areas which provide spacious family homes
from being overwhelmed by higher intensity development. It is also noted that the site is
within close proximity of both Marchbank House and Kendall Manor, which are sizeable
blocks of flats and it is therefore considered that the proposal would result in a
concentration of large buildings housing flats within the immediate vicinity. 

The proposed development is therefore contrary to Local Plan Policies BE 13 and BE 19
and London Plan Policies 7.4 and 7.6.

Should the application be approved, further development would be encouraged which
would further erode the levels of family housing on the street, resulting in the loss of its

Page 23



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08 Impact on neighbours

historic context, intensifying land use to the point that it would compromise the suburban
nature of the surrounding area and removing large family dwellings for which there is a
demand within the district as per Local Plan Policy H 5 and London Plan Policy 3.8 (f).

The side and rear boundaries of the development site are bordered by neighbouring
residential development. The rear projection of the development would be stepped in from
the side boundary by approximately 3.6 metres and will project along the entire depth of the
rear garden of No. 36 Ducks Hill Road. It is noted that 36 Ducks Hill Road has a side facing
dormer window, which serves a bedroom, that will face directly towards the flank elevation
of the proposed development. In addition, there are a number of windows serving habitable
rooms on the rear elevation of the neighbouring dwelling as well as a terrace to the rear of
the dwelling. The Council's SPD for Residential Layouts para. 4.9 provides guidance on
assessing potential overshadowing caused by new development. A 15 metre long splay
extending 45 degrees either side of the midpoint of any window serving a habitable room on
the neighbouring property should not be obstructed by any elevation wall of two or more
storeys. In this instance, splays taken from the ground floor living room window on the rear
elevation and the easterly facing kitchen / dining window and first floor bedroom windows
on the rear elevation and an easterly facing dormer window serving a bedroom at 36 Ducks
Hill Road will be interrupted by the flank wall of the proposed building. In the case of the
living room and kitchen / dining room, these rooms are served by other windows that would
not be obstructed by the development. The bedroom windows affected are the primary light
source for those rooms. However, based on the height of these windows and that of the
neighbouring building, a 25 degree vertical angle taken from these windows would remain
unobstructed as per the requirements of para. 4.15 of the Residential Extensions SPD.
The proposed development is therefore considered to be in accordance with Local Plan
Policy BE 20 and London Plan Policies 7.4 and 7.6.

With regards to potential for overlooking, all windows on the side elevation, which face
towards 36 Ducks Hill Road and 4 Cygnet Close will be obscure glazed in order to prevent
intrusive views towards neighbouring properties. A condition would be attached to any
approval given requiring obscure glazing to be maintained at all times and for these
windows to be fixed shut other than parts over 1.7 metres above finished floor level (for
example fanlights to provide ventilation). The windows on the northern side facing elevation
of the rear projection are a sufficient distance or angled in such a way as to ensure no
habitable windows on neighbouring properties are within 21 metres of these windows
based upon a 45 degree visibility splay either side of the midpoint of relevant windows. This
is also the case for balconies which are a sufficient distance from surrounding properties
to prevent invasive views being offered. It should be noted that the rear elevation of the flats
is stepped further back than that of the previously refused scheme with the result that a
sufficient separation distance is now maintained between habitable windows on the
proposed building and on neighbouring properties on Cygnet Close and Ducks Hill Road. In
addition, all bedroom windows on the closest part of the rear elevation to neighbouring
properties are now proposed to be obscure glazed and, as with the other obscure glazing
on the building described above, a condition can be attached to any approval to secure this
arrangement in perpetuity. The previous scheme included balconies that would have
directly overlooked the rear of properties on Cygnet Close which have now been
substituted for a 'juliet' balcony arrangement, thereby addressing previous concerns. It is
therefore considered that the proposed development satisfies Local Plan Policy BE 24 and
London Plan Policies 7.4 and 7.6.

It is noted that the existing dwellings on the site already compromise the 45 degree rule
both in terms of the 15 metre distance to be maintained between buildings and the 21

Page 24



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

metre distance to be maintained between windows serving habitable rooms. The proposed
building will project moderately further towards the front of the site than the existing dwelling
at 42 Ducks Hill Road. However, it is not considered that the additional projection will
substantially or harmfully alter the amenity impact upon 42 Ducks Hill Road by way of
overshadowing or overbearing. It is also noted that the dwelling at 42 Ducks Hill Road is
angled away from the site, reducing the impact of the proposed building.

However, the relationship towards 36 Ducks HilL Road will be materially altered. The flank
walls will run the close to the entire depth of the rear garden of 36 Ducks Hill Road and,
whilst planning legislation does not protect rights to a view, it does instruct that negative
impact towards neighbouring amenities caused by overbearing is a material consideration.
Given the depth of the flank wall and its proximity to the side boundary shared with 36
Ducks Hill Road, it is considered that it would appear overbearing and oppressive towards
the occupants of 36 Ducks Hill Road, particularly when viewed from within the rear garden.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would result in a significant loss
of residential amenity by reason of its siting, bulk and proximity to the side boundary of the
site. The proposed development is therefore in conflict with Local Plan Policy BE 21 and
London Plan Policies 7.4 and 7.6.

The proposed development provides 9 x three bedroom residential units. The internal
space standards enshrined within the London Plan (2016) stipulate minimum Gross
Internal Area (GIA) for residential units based on the amount of bedrooms provided,
occupancy rate and the amount of storeys over which the space is distributed. These
standards are correspond directly with the Department for Communities and Local
Government (DCLG) Technical housing standards - nationally described space standard
(2015).

The minimum GIA for a 3 bedroom single-storey unit is 74 m² assuming occupation by 4
individuals, 86 m² assuming occupation by 5 individuals and 95 m² assuming occupation
by 6 individuals. The GIA of each apartment varies between approximately 118 m² and 124
m² but in all instances the GIA is comfortably above the minimum threshold. It is therefore
considered that the proposed development satisfies London Plan Policy 3.5 in this regard.

The use of obscure glazing for windows, including a number serving habitable rooms, is
not considered to compromise internal living conditions for future occupants as all
habitable rooms that include obscurely glazed windows are dual aspect and therefore also
served by a clear glazed window which will provide adequate natural light and ventilation.
One of the reasons of refusal attached to the previous scheme was concern over whether
adequate natural light would be provided to rear facing living rooms within the flats
contained in the front section of the building, owing to their proximity to the flank wall of the
rear projection. The revised scheme has not altered the general positioning of these
fenestrations but has reduced the depth of the rear projection and this has alleviated
concerns regarding natural light permeation to the aforementioned rooms. The proposed
development therefore satisfies Local Plan Policy BE 20 and London Plan Policy 3.5.

Policy BE 23 of the Local Plan requires that all new development both preserves private
amenity space serving existing properties and provides sufficient private amenity space for
future occupants of said development. The Council's SPD for Residential Layouts provides
standards for the amount of private amenity space that should be provided for the
occupants of a residential unit. This takes the form of a sliding scale based on the amount
of bedrooms that the unit provides. 

Page 25



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The minimum amount of shared amenity space recommended for flatted development is
30 m² per 3 bedroom flat. Communal space is located to the rear of the building and is
secured by boundary fencing and a gate. The overall amount provided is approximately 610
m² which is in excess of the minimum amount and is considered to be appropriate given
the suburban nature of the site.  The communal space provided is considered to be easily
accessible, clearly defined in relation to private terraces that are also included within the
development, well exposed to natural light and is overlooked by all properties within the
development, ensuring security. The communal space therefore satisfies Standard 4 and
para. 2.2.11 of the London Plan Housing SPG.

In addition, Standard 26 of the London Plan Housing SPG stipulates that a minimum of 5
m² of private outdoor space should be provided for 1-2 person dwellings and an extra 1 m²
should be provided for each additional occupant. Ground floor units are all served by an
approximately 15m² private terrace area, accessed directly from the unit. Four of the upper
floor flats have private balconies measuring approximately 8m². The upper floor flats within
the rear section of the building do not have balconies. This is due to site constraints as any
balconies provided would overlook neighbouring dwellings on Cygnet Close at an intrusive
level. Para. 2.3.32 of the London Plan Housing SPG states that in exceptional
circumstances, where site constraints make it impossible to provide private open space for
all dwellings, a proportion of dwellings may instead be provided with additional internal living
space equivalent to the area of the private open space requirement. This area must be
added to the minimum GIA. As all units have well over the minimum required GIA, it is
considered that this is a acceptable for the units without balconies.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would be in accordance with
Local Plan Policy BE 23 and London Plan Policy 3.5 in this regard.

The application was accompanied by a Transport Statement and this, along with all other
plans, has been assessed by the Council's Highway Engineers. The low PTAL score for
the site has been noted as well as the consequence that this will result in a strong reliance
on private cars for future occupants of the development. The basement parking which
would serve the development provides 20 parking bays, including a 10% provision of
disabled parking bays, and this amount is in accordance with relevant parking standards
based on the PTAL score and number of bedrooms provided. 

It is not anticipated that the development will result in a significant increase in traffic over
that generated by the use of the site as two separate dwellings. 

Access to the site will be taken via a dropped kerb on to Ducks Hill Road. The site will be
secured by automatic sliding gates which are set back a sufficient distance from the
highway to prevent vehicles waiting to enter the site from obstructing traffic. The visibility
splays provided at the site entrance / exit are sufficient to allow for good visibility of
approaching traffic and pedestrians. Pedestrians will access the site by a separate
gateway and path and will therefore not be at risk of encountering vehicles entering and
leaving the site. 

9 cycle parking spaces are provided within the basement parking area. Whilst this is below
the Council's standards, additional storage can be provided within the internal storage
areas available in each unit.

It is therefore considered that the proposed development would satisfy the requirements of
Policies AM 8, AM 14 and AM 15 and London Plan Policy 6.13.

Page 26



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

The design of the building has been discussed within section 7.07 of this report. To
summarise, it is considered that the building design reflects the 'arts and crafts' style that
is characteristic of this part of Northwood. The breaking up of the building into segments
arranged around a central atrium and the staggering of front and rear elevations helps to
distribute the mass of the building in such a way that it does not appear overly bulky or
oppressive.

The building will be constructed in accordance with Part M of the Building Regulations
which relates to accessibility. All floors, including basement parking, will be served by a lift
and all access points will be level. Rooms are laid out in a logical way and all, other than
en-suite facilities, are accessible from a central hallway. The rear communal space
features a clearly defined level pathway. It is therefore considered that the proposed
development would provide good levels of accessibility.

The proposed building has fenestrations on all aspects and all private and communal
spaces are overlooked. There are a number of windows and openings on the frontage and,
as such, the building fully engages within the street scene. The presence of the building will
not result in any isolated or secluded spaces being created within the public realm which
would have the potential to encourage anti-social activity. The site will be secured by
boundary fencing and automatic gates. A condition will be attached to any approval given
requiring 'Secure by Design' standards to be adhered to for the site and for details of how
these standards are to be implemented to be provided to the Council and approved prior to
commencement of development. If carried out to the approved specification, the
development would be in accordance with Local Plan Policy BE 18.

Accessibility matters are discussed in section 7.11 of this report.

The proposed development is for less than 10 residential units (with a net gain of 7 given
the loss of the two existing dwellings on site). As such, it falls below relevant thresholds for
the provision of affordable and / or special needs housing.

The site has been partially cleared and it is understood that this has included the removal
of trees within the garden, none of which were the subject of Tree Protection Orders or
located within a Conservation Area. 

The proposal includes a comprehensive landscaping scheme an the retention of two
significant existing trees to the front of the site, namely one Holly and one Horse Chestnut
tree. The Council's Landscape Officer has reviewed the proposed landscaping scheme
and fount it to be acceptable subject to additional detail being provided as to the
appearance around the basement parking ramp, with particular reference to retaining walls
and pedestrian barriers. In addition, the current siting of the bin store would need attention
in the form of either repositioning further within the site or submitting details of sympathetic
screening to be employed in order to prevent a negative impact upon the street scene.

Suitable landscaping to the frontage is particularly important in order to ensure that the
open and verdant nature of the current street scene is preserved and enhanced.

It is therefore considered that, subject to satisfactory landscaping details being received,
the development would be in accordance with Local Plan Policy BE 38.

Page 27



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.16

7.17

7.18

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

The scheme provides bin storage facilities that would be accessible to waste collection
operatives. Refuse vehicles would not need to enter the site and would stop on the
adjacent highway as is the case for neighbouring properties.

The development will be subject to relevant Building Regulations legislation in regard to
energy efficiency. In addition, it is intended for photovoltaic panels to be installed on the flat
roof elements of the building although no details of their location or the mounting method
have been received with the application. As such, a condition requiring details of the siting,
panel size and mounting structure to be submitted to and approved by the Council prior to
the commencement of development would be attached to any approval given.

The application was accompanied by a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) and Surface Water
Drainage Strategy. The Council's drainage engineers have reviewed both documents and
are satisfied with the results and mitigation measures that would be adopted. These
include:-

Surface water from all impermeable areas to be attenuated a the storage tank which will
provide a volume of approximately 22.8 m³. This volume can accommodate all rainfalls
events up to the 1 in 100 year event with 40% climate change.

Discharge from the site will be restricted to the greenfield runoff rate of 2.5 l/s providing
88% betterment on the 1 in 100 storm event. 

Discharge from the site will be connected to a Thames Water surface water sewer. This
will require consent from Thames Water and an informative will be attached to any
approval given drawing the applicants attention to this matter.

A pumped surface water system will be implemented as the site will be lowered below
existing ground levels. A gravity system is not considered to be viable for this reason.

Surface water will be treated by a vortex separator located downstream of the attenuation
tank.

A private management company will be set up to manage and maintain the drainage
system.

Provided that the measures set out in the Flood Risk Assessment and Surface Water
Drainage Strategy are implemented and maintained, the development would be in
accordance with Policy OE 8  of the Local Plan.

The proposal is for residential development and it is not considered that it would generate a
level of noise that would be incompatible with the surrounding residential environment.
Further, it is not considered that the balconies are of a sufficient size to allow sustained
use by a significant number of people and, as such, it is not considered that they would
lead to undue disturbance towards neighbouring properties.

The basement parking facility would be within close proximity of neighbouring properties
and given this, and its proposed use, it is considered that any approval given should include
a condition requiring a noise assessment to be provided in order to satisfy the Planning
Authority that sufficient sound proofing measures will be employed to prevent disturbance
towards neighbouring occupants as well as occupants of the development itself. Any such

Page 28



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.19

7.20

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning Obligations

measures would need to be included within construction and maintained in perpetuity
thereafter.

Provided satisfactory details are received, it is considered that the proposed development
would be in accordance with Local Plan Policy OE 1 and London Plan Policy

With regard to the accuracy of the application form, planning statement and design and
access statement. It is not considered there has been any attempt to mislead, the
accompanying plans clearly show a development of flats on the current site of 38 - 40
Ducks Hill Road. Typographical errors are not a valid reason to refuse an application.

The proposal does not represent backland development as the proposed building has a
clear street frontage. The backland development designation relates to garden land to the
rear of a dwelling that is to be retained.

With regard to policy considerations, Local Plan Policies take precedence provided they
reflect the general aims and objectives of regional and national policies and legislation. The
Council's Local Plan Policies date from 2007 and were reviewed in 2012, with some of the
original policies not saved as they were superseded by Local and National Policy. When
applying Local Plan policies, regard has to be paid to the following direction contained
within the NPPF which states that planning permission should be granted 'where the
development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out of date.'

The Council's emerging local plan has not been adopted and the proposed development
has been determined based on current Local Plan polices.

Infrastructure works such as new sewage pipes are not considered as part of this
application. In most instances, the works will be performed by or on behalf of a statutory
undertaker and planning permission will not be required as per Schedule 2, Part 13, B of
the General Permitted Development Order (2015) (as amended).

The Council no longer applies lifetime homes standards to development.

All other points raised relate to matters that are discussed within the main body of this
report.

Policy R 17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012),
requires that where developments generate the need for additional facilities, financial
contributions will be sought.

The proposed development is not considered generate such a need and, as such, there
are no requirements for planning obligations to be attached, should approval be granted.

All planning approvals for schemes with a net additional internal floor area of 100m² or
more will be liable for the Mayoral
Community Infrastructure Levy (Mayoral CIL), as legislated by the Community
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 and The Community Infrastructure Levy
(Amendment) Regulations 2011. The liability payable will be equal to £35 per square
metre.  The London Borough of Hillingdon is a collecting authority for the Mayor of London
and this liability shall be paid to LBH in the first instance.

In addition the development represents Chargeable Development under the Hillingdon

Page 29



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.21

7.22

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

Community Infrastructure Levy, which came into effect on 1st August 2014. The liability
payable will be £95 per square metre.

The proposal involves the partitioning of the current plot at 40 Ducks Hill Road, with the
western end (which backs on to Cygnet Close) remaining undeveloped. Whilst the site is
within a residential area, is of sufficient size for residential development and includes a
road frontage, it is considered that access to any potential development in the future would
be obstructed by a line of TPO trees and, as such, the site does not represent a viable
development site. It is therefore considered that the partitioning of the site would result in a
land locked parcel of land with no realistic opportunity for development.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned. 

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

Page 30



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The proposal has addressed some of the reasons for refusal attached to the previous
scheme, namely by providing a suitable drainage scheme and amending the design and
layout so as to prevent unacceptable overlooking and overshadowing impact towards
neighbouring properties.

However, a fundamental objection is raised against additional flatted development on
Ducks Hill Road given the degree to which its original character has already been eroded
through the loss of large, detached family homes and replacement with flatted
development.

The depth of the proposed building is also considered to be unacceptable as the flank wall
will extend virtually the entire depth of the garden of No. 36 Ducks Hill Road, thereby
introducing a sense of enclosure and appearing as an overbearing and oppressive
presence.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan (2016)
Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon
National Planning Policy Framework
The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)
DCLG Technical housing standards - nationally described space standard (2015)

James McLean Smith 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 31



5

1

WESTMINSTER CLOSE

15
13

3
858

60

50
52

37

31
0

119

8
12

57 6
9 4

13
15

Posts

Marchbank House

3
1

2
7
a

2
9

Rosecroft

78.0m

CYGNET C
LOSE

5
2

2
5 1

0

21

2
2

6

4
8

18

19

9

4
4

4
0

MALLARD WAY

4
8

1

El Sub Sta

Cedar

5

1 to 8

Grange

12

3

3
7

3
8
a

3
8
c

4

3

C
K

'S
 H

IL
L

 R
O

A
D

3
8

3
7
a

5

3
6

Court

C
Y

G
N

E
T

 C
L

O
S

E

2
8

3
8

E
A

T
O

N
 G

A
T

E

7

72
7

2

1

19

3
5

17

5

8

2

7

3
1

7

3
4

5

3
7
b

27

3
8
b

34

3
9

Pond

1

MUSCOVY PLACE

8

4
4

´

May 2017

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

38 - 40 Ducks Hill Road

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

71798/APP/2017/803

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 32



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

LAND TO THE REAR OF ROBINS HEARNE AND LITTLEWOOD DUCKS
HILL ROAD NORTHWOOD 

Erection of 4 x two storey, 4-bed detached dwellings with associated parking
and amenity space (Outline application for access and layout with some
matters reserved).

01/02/2017

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 41674/APP/2017/381

Drawing Nos: 1:1250 Location Plan
15.17.1 Rev. B
DHR/FC/04
DHR/FC/05
15.167.2 (Illustrative plans and elevations for Plots 3 and 4
Design and Access Statement
Tree Protection Plan
Arboricultural Survey to British Standard B.S. 5837:2012 'Trees in relation to
design, demolition and construction - Recommendations at Land rear of
Robins Hearne, Ducks Hill Road, Northwood
Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey Report, February 2016
Stratton Associates letter dated 5/4/17

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

This application seeks outline permission for the erection of 4 detached houses, involving
rear garden land to the rear of properties which front Ducks Hill Road. Means of access,
which would be taken from Fringewood Close and layout only are to be determined at this
stage, with the plans showing the floor plans and elevations of the houses only being
indicative. Appearance, landscaping and scale are reserved for subsequent approval.

This scheme is a resubmission of a very similar outline application for 4 houses on this
site (App. No. 41674/APP/2015/2100 refers) that was presented to the North Planning
Committee on 21st June 2016. Although the officer recommendation was for approval,
Members resolved to refuse the scheme and a subsequent appeal was dismissed on
20th February 2017.

The current proposal is an almost identical scheme and the changes made and
clarification provided are not considered to have addressed the Member's reason for
refusal of the previous scheme or the Inspector's justification for dismissing the
subsequent appeal and therefore the scheme is recommended for refusal.

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by reason of its siting and layout would result in a
development of the site, which would fail to harmonise with the existing local and historic

1

2. RECOMMENDATION

06/03/2017Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 7

Page 33



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

context of the surrounding area. The principle of intensifying the residential use of the site
to the level proposed, as well as the proposed loss of existing private rear garden area
would have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the area as a whole.
The proposal is therefore detrimental to the visual amenity and character of the
surrounding area and contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One -
Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies 3.5, 7.1 and 7.4 of the London
Plan (March 2016), the Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance -
Housing (March 2016) and the NPPF.

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated
with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

NPPF1

NPPF6

NPPF7

NPPF10

NPPF11

LPP 3.4

LPP 3.5

LPP 3.8

LPP 5.3

LPP 7.4

LPP 7.6

BE13

BE18

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

OE1

NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF - Requiring good design

NPPF - Meeting challenge of climate change flooding costal

NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the natural environment

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

(2016) Housing Choice

(2016) Sustainable design and construction

(2016) Local character

(2016) Architecture

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties

Page 34



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises an irregular-shaped area of land forming part of and located
at the end of the rear gardens of a detached house known as Robins Hearne and part of a
recently constructed flatted block known as 'Woodlands' which front the south-east side of
Ducks Hill Road. The site is located to the north of the turning head at the northern end of
Fringewood Close, sited in front of No.17 which immediately adjoins the application site to
the south. Fringewood Close only has detached houses on its south eastern side, with the
north western side of the road comprising the ends of the rear gardens of properties
fronting Ducks Hill Road. The garden areas are characterised by numerous mature trees,
of which a number within and close to the application site are protected under Tree
Preservation Order No. 281.

The site forms part of the 'developed area' as identified by the Local Plan Policies and is
surrounded by adjoining properties and their rear gardens, with the rear gardens to the
south east forming part of the Copsewood Estate, Northwood Area of Special Local
Character.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks outline permission for the erection of 4 detached houses on the site.
Means of access and layout only is to be determined at this stage and the plans showing
the siting and floor plans of the houses are only indicative. Appearance, landscaping and
scale are reserved for subsequent approval.

Access to the site would be by means of extending Fringewood Close on the south
western boundary of the application site. The houses on Plots 1 and 2 would be sited on
the south eastern side of the extended access road and Plots 3 and 4 would be on the
north western side.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

H4

H5

R17

AM7

AM13

AM14

HDAS-LAY

LDF-AH

and the local area
Mix of housing units

Dwellings suitable for large families

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation
leisure and community facilities
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through (where
appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes
New development and car parking standards.

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006
Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

Page 35



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

This scheme differs from this previous application (App. No. 41674/APP/2015/2100 refers)
in that the separation gap between the houses on Plots 3 and 4 has increased from
approximately 4 to 5m. Changes have also been made to the footprint of the houses on
Plots 3 and 4, although their general siting remains the same, with the main differences
involving the small rear projecting 'conservatory' shaped additions from each of these
houses have been omitted and the overall width of the house on Plot 4 has been reduced
by approximately 1m and the house on Plot 3 by approximately 3.1m. The overall length of
the access road has also been shortened and the width and length of the individual
driveways has been reduced. Following comments made in the Inspector's decision letter,
the agent has also provided clarification that the rear elevation of the nearest house (Plot 4)
to the rear elevation of the newly built flatted block known as Woodlands at 103 - 1057
Ducks Hill Road would be some 22.8m.

The application is supported by the following documents:-

Design and Access Statement:
This provides a brief statement, advising that the current application is a re-submission of
41674/APP/2015/2100. It goes on to provide a brief summary of the planning history, noting
there has been a history of planning approvals for the same development on this site since
2002, albeit the site was split into two separate applications and each application and its
successor was approved until the Planning Committee overturned the officer's
recommendation for approval on the last submission (App. No. 41674/APP/2015/2100
refers).

It goes on to note that an Arboricultural Report and accompanying plans, together with a
Stage 1 Ecology Survey were submitted with the last application and found to be
acceptable by the Council and are included as part of this resubmission as they are within
acceptable timescales.

It notes that following the decision of the Planning Committee, a meeting was held with
planning officers and it was agreed the re-submission may benefit from slight changes to
the siting of the houses on Plots 3 and 4, namely:-
-reduction in the length of the access drive into the site itself together with a shortening of
the width and depth of the individual access drives to Plots 3 and 4,
- An increase in the separation width between the houses on Plots 3 and 4,
- Although application is in outline, indicative floor plans have been included in past
submission.

The statement goes on to advise that the shortest distance between the rear elevations of
the newly built flatted block and the house on Plot 4 is 22.8m, comprising of 7.8m from the
nearest part of the apartment building to the rear boundary and a minimum distance of 15m
from that common boundary to the rear of the proposed dwelling on Plot 4.

The statement goes on to advise that no issues have been raised with the vehicular and
pedestrian arrangements since the scheme was first approved in 2002 and the site is level
so that there would not be any issues in terms of satisfying Part M of the Building
Regulations as regards accessibility.

Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey Report, February 2016:
The describes relevant legislation and outlines the methodology, which comprised a desk
and site surveys. Results are presented and appropriate mitigation measures and
enhancement work are recommended.

Page 36



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

This application is essentially a re-submission of a very similar outline application (App. No.
41674/APP/2015/2100 refers) for 4 detached houses on this site which Members
overturned the officer recommendation for approval at the North Planning Committee on
21/6/16 for the following reason:-

The proposed development, by reason of its siting and layout would result in a development
of the site, which would fail to harmonise with the existing local and historic context of the
surrounding area. The principle of intensifying the residential use of the site to the level
proposed, as well as the proposed loss of existing private rear garden area would have a
detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the area as a whole. The proposal
is therefore detrimental to the visual amenity and character of the surrounding area and
contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies
(November 2012), Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies 3.5, 7.1 and 7.4 of the London Plan (March 2016),
the Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
and the NPPF.

A subsequent appeal was dismissed on 24/1/17.

Prior to this, there has been a lengthy history of planning applications on this or part of this
site for housing development which go back to the 1990s.

Schedule of Previous Decisions:

41674/APP/2013/543 - Extension of Fringewood Close and 2 x two storey, 4- bedroom
detached dwellings (Outline planning application for access and layout with other matters
reserved) - Refused for the following reasons:

1. The proposal fails to provide sufficient details, including an up to date tree survey, an
arboricultural impact assessment, tree retention/removal strategy and tree protection
method statement and thus fails to demonstrate that the proposal would result in the trees
on site being safeguarded. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy BE38 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

2. The applicant has failed to provide contributions towards the improvement of services
and facilities as a consequence of demands created by the proposed development,
particularly in respect of education. The proposal therefore conflicts with Policy R17 of the
adopted Local Plan and the Council's Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning
Guidance.

41674/APP/2013/546 - Extension of Fringewood Close and 2 x two storey, 4- bedroom
detached dwellings (Outline planning application for access and layout with other matters

Arboricultural Survey to British Standard B.S. 5837: 2012 'Trees in relations to design,
demolition and construction - Recommendations':
This provides an assessment of the existing trees on site and considers the impact of the
proposed development. It concludes that there are several important trees that should be
retained and the submitted tree protection plan shows how the site can be laid out to
minimize tree loss and provide suitable amenity space for the house. There would be small
encroachments upon the root protection areas of a few trees but these are acceptable and
can be overcome with specific approved techniques.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 37



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

reserved) - Refused for the following reasons:

1. The proposal fails to provide sufficient details, including an up to date tree survey, an
arboricultural impact assessment, tree retention/removal strategy and tree protection
method statement and thus fails to demonstrate that the proposal would result in the trees
on site being safeguarded. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy BE38 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

2. The applicant has failed to provide contributions towards the improvement of services
and facilities as a consequence of demands created by the proposed development,
particularly in respect of education. The proposal therefore conflicts with Policy R17 of the
adopted Local Plan and the Council's Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning
Guidance.

41674/APP/2009/2651 - Erection of 2 four bedroom detached houses (Outline application)
- Approved 2 March 2010.

41674/APP/2009/2643 - Extension of Fringewood Close and erection of 2 four bedroom
detached houses (Outline application) - Approved 2 March 2010.

41674/APP/2005/396 - Erection of two detached houses (Outline Application) - Approved
31 March 2005.

41674/APP/2005/150 - Extension of Fringewood Close and erection of two detached
houses (Outline Application) (Renewal of planning permission ref. 41674/APP/2002/385,
dated 25/04/2002) - Approved 8th March 2005.

41674/APP/2002/385 - Extension of Fringewood Close and erection of two detached
houses (Outline application) (Renewal of planning permission ref. 41674/98/1199, dated
24th September 1999) - Approved 25th April 2002.

41674/98/1199 - Extension of Fringewood Close and erection of two detached houses
(Outline application - Approved 24th September 1999.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

PT1.BE1

PT1.EM1

PT1.EM6

PT1.EM7

PT1.EM8

PT1.CI1

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation

(2012) Flood Risk Management

(2012) Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

(2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

(2012) Community Infrastructure Provision

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Page 38



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NPPF1

NPPF6

NPPF7

NPPF10

NPPF11

LPP 3.4

LPP 3.5

LPP 3.8

LPP 5.3

LPP 7.4

LPP 7.6

BE13

BE18

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

OE1

H4

H5

R17

AM7

AM13

AM14

HDAS-LAY

LDF-AH

NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF - Requiring good design

NPPF - Meeting challenge of climate change flooding costal

NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the natural environment

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

(2016) Housing Choice

(2016) Sustainable design and construction

(2016) Local character

(2016) Architecture

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Mix of housing units

Dwellings suitable for large families

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people with
disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

Part 2 Policies:

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

Page 39



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Not applicable5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

47 neighbouring properties have been consulted on this application, 2 site notices have been
displayed adjacent to the site on 30/3/17 with a closing date of 19/4/17, one on Fringewood Close,
one on Ducks Hill Road. 8 individual responses have been received, objecting to the proposal,
together with 2 'petitions', objecting to the proposal with 28 and 17 signatories respectively. Although
the second 'petition' comprises less than the 20 valid signatories, it is to be considered as an
addition to the valid petition.

The petition with 28 signatories is summarized as follows:-

The petition is from the undersigned 28 adult residents of Fringewood Close who wish to:

- object to the above planning application to build four houses on gardens to the rear of "Robin's
Hearne" and "Littlewood" on Ducks Hill Road
- petition the Council to refuse this application

The application is a virtually identical repeat of 41674/APP/2015/2100 which was rejected
unanimously by the North Planning Committee at their meeting on 21 June 2016 and subsequently
rejected at appeal on 20 February 2017.

The petitioners reiteration their grounds for objection to the previous scheme (41674/APP/2015/2100
refers) as set out in their petition to that application which is re-submitted here and summarized as
follows:-

- The proposal constitutes overdevelopment,
- It would change the character of this section of Fringewood Close, with the 'double sided'
development either side of the extended access road being at odds with the rest of the 'single sided'
nature of the northern part of the road, being visually incompatible and failing to harmonise with the
existing street scene,
- Proposal would fail to provide adequate parking facilities which would exacerbate existing parking
congestion in the road and contravene rights of owners of private road frontage,
- Proposal would negatively impact upon the residential amenity of residents in the Close,
- Planning history for similar development here includes both approved and refused schemes and
some residents may not of been aware proposal included a total of 4 houses,
- Proposal unlikely to be capable of connecting to main sewers and privately owned and jointly
maintained sewage station at No. 17 which also serves No. 15 is unlikely to be able to cope with 6
houses, and would quickly back-up in event of break down,
- There have been changes in circumstances in that the Government in 2010 have enabled LPAs to
refuse schemes which involve garden grabbing and road conditions and traffic congestion have
been made worse with all the other development in Ducks Hill Road that has taken place,

Further observations

The Committee's decision of 30 August 2016 (agreed in similar terms by the Inspector in his
decision of 20 February 2017) stated:

Page 40



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

"The proposed development, by reason of its siting and layout would result in a development of the
site, which would fail to harmonise with the existing local and historic context of the surrounding
area. The principle of intensifying the residential use of the site to the level proposed, as well as the
proposed loss of existing private rear garden area would have a detrimental impact on the character
and appearance of the area as a whole. The proposal is therefore detrimental to the visual amenity
and character of the surrounding area and contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies 3.5, 7.1 and 7.4 of the London Plan, the
Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016) and the
NPPF."

The petitioners strongly object to this repeat application on these grounds and the repeat application
makes no attempt to address this issue.

The submitted location plan is inaccurate as it fails to take account of the subsequent construction,
size and location of the Woodlands apartment building. This subsequent development simply
reinforces the conclusions reached in relation to the previous application and the reasons given in
the August 2016 notice of decision.

The Design and Access Statement indicates that planning officers have suggested "slight changes"
to the siting of the houses on plots 3 and 4 may "benefit the resubmission". The changes appear to
be so slight as to be invisible when seeking to compare the site layout plans for this and the previous
application and are presumably designed to edge the houses on plots 3 and 4 away from
Woodlands in the hope of trying to neutralize concerns of Woodlands residents about overlooking.
However, shortening drives a few imperceptible feet fails to address the concerns of Fringewood
Close residents (and of Councillors at the June 2016 meeting). The impact of the Woodlands
apartment block did not feature in the June 2016 discussion and simply reinforces the view that the
development would be out of character and over-intensive for the location.

The petitioners view the re-submission of what is effectively the same application as an abuse of the
planning process. The changes from the previous application are insignificant.

We understand that the Council has authority to decline to consider an application which is
resubmitted without significant change within two years of the rejection of the appeal and call upon
the Council to exercise that power in relation to any further attempt to repeat this application for four
houses at this location.

The petitioners in the second petition object to the proposal on the following grounds:

- The Location Plan, Site Layout Plan and Tree Survey are out of date as they show previous Plots
103 - 107 instead of the new Woodlands apartments development erected in 2015-16,
- The scheme will cause significant loss of light and privacy to Woodlands as a result of at least two
of the proposed properties (Plots 3 and 4),
- Huge impact on wildlife including many bird species,
- Ducks Hill Road is already busy and additional properties will further increase traffic load from
Fringewood Close,
- Proposal would conflict with Unitary Development and Hillingdon Plans as cited in Council's
decision notice and Planning Inspectorate's Appeal decision letter, including, but not limited to Policy
BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan, Part One - Strategic Policies (2012), Policies BE13 and BE19 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan, Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (2012) which seek to achieve high quality
design that contributes positively to local areas in terms of layout and improves the character of the
area and Policies 3.5, 7.1 and 7.4 of the London Plan that require housing to enhance the quality of
local places, have regard to the pattern and grain of the area and reinforce local character among
other things.

Page 41



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

Although the proposed development for 4 houses on this site, accessed from an extension
to Fringewood Close has previously been approved on this site, as noted by the Inspector

Internal Consultees

Tree/ Landscaping Officer:
This site was the subject of a previous planning application ref. 2015/2100 which was refused at
appeal.

Comment
The current submission includes a the tree survey by Merewood, dated 2015, prepared for the
previous application.  Although it is now 2 years old, in this case the information is still relevant and
appropriate. The layout is very similar to the previous application.

Recommendation
No objections, subject to conditions RES8, RES9 and RES10. 

Sustainability Officer:
No objections to the scheme, subject to conditions to require further detailed bat, reptile and
mammal habitat and species surveys to be submitted and approved prior to the commencement of
development. A wildlife enhancement scheme would also be required.

The individual responses raise the following summarized concerns:-

(i)  New development will result in loss of privacy to surrounding properties, particularly Woodlands
and Wildwood and private and communal gardens,
(ii) New development will block morning sunlight from Woodlands apartments and patio,
(iii) Quiet residential garden would be turned into site for 4 houses, increasing noise and activity,
(iv) Development would be overbearing, out of character with tranquil setting,
(v) Loss of existing views from neighbouring properties,
(vi) Separation distance quoted by agent is irrelevant as does not change the concerns raised by the
Inspector that scheme 'there can be no assurances that the dwelling at Plot 4 would achieve
suitable separation distance to fit in with the prevailing pattern of development and maintain the
existing high levels of spaciousness and the 'there being no flexibility over the layout of the dwellings
the proposal would therefore result in a cramped development that would be harmful to the
character and appearance of the area'.
(vii) Proposal would exacerbate light pollution,
(viii) Application makes no attempt to address previous refusal and therefore conflicts with policies
cited by Planning Committee and Inspector. Not aware there has since been any change to planning
policy,
(ix) Given inconvenience of another application, can Council refuse to deal with it?
(x) Submitted plans show previous houses at 103 - 107 Ducks Hill Road and not 'Woodlands',
(xi) Large impact upon wildlife,
(xii) Ducks Hill Road is already busy and proposal will increase traffic from Fringewood Close,
(xiii) There will not be sufficient parking,
(xiv) Extending access road to serve more properties would exacerbate access difficulties,
particularly for larger vehicles,
(xv) Septic tank for Nos. 15 and 17 Fringewood Close would not be able to cope with additional
pressure,

Northwood Residents' Association:
The proposal is detrimental to the visual amenity and character of the area, contrary to Local Plan
Policies, BE1, BE13 and BE19.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 42



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02 Density of the proposed development

in his decision letter on the previous, almost identical application:-

'Although there is a history of previous planning permissions at the appeal site I have no
evidence before me that these remain extant. Therefore while the principle of development
has previously been established I am required to consider the proposal againast the
policies of the development plan currently in force and any material changes in
circumstances.'

The Inspector went on to consider the planning merits of the scheme and noted that in this
regard, an adjoining site at Nos. 103 - 107 Ducks Hill Road  'Woodlands' had been re-
developed as a flatted block which had not been shown on the application plans, nor
mentioned by the LPA. The Inspector advised at paragraphs 9 to 11:-

9. Given the additional height and short rear gardens of Woodlands there can be no
assurances that the proposed dwelling at Plot 4 would achieve suitable separation
distances to fit in with the prevailing pattern of development and maintain the existing high
levels of spaciousness.  I acknowledge that the arrangement of houses along Copsewood
Way is of limited significance to the proposal due to the limited visual association with that
estate. The extensive trees and hedgerows of the appeal site would also largely screen the
proposal in streetscene views along Fringewood Close.

10.  However, the proposal would be clearly visible from properties along Duck Hill Road.
On the limited information before me the close relationship between Plot 4 and the
Woodlands would not appear to maintain existing densities or the spaciousness of the
area.  There being no flexibility over the layout of the dwellings the proposal would therefore
result in a cramped development that would be harmful to the character and appearance of
the area.  The limited benefits of four additional units to the dwelling supply and the
Council's acceptance of the access proposed would not outweigh this significant harm.

11.  I conclude that the proposal would result in harm to the character and appearance of
the area. As a result it would conflict with Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One
- Strategic Policies 2012 and Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies 2012 that seek to achieve high quality design that makes a
positive contribution to local areas in terms of layout, and which complements and
improves the character of the area. It would also conflict with Policies 3.5, 7.1 and 7.4 of
the London Plan that require housing to enhance the quality of local places, have regard to
pattern and grain, and improve or reinforce character, among other things.

Since the appeal decision in February 2017, there has been no significant change in
planning policy and the minor changes made do not significantly alter the scheme and it is
not considered that the Inspector's concerns  have been  overcome. The proposal is
therefore recommended for refusal.

When considering small scale developments such on this, the Mayor's density guidelines
are of little value and it is more relevant to assess the scheme in terms of the character
and appearance of the area. To this end, on the previous appeal, the Inspector noted that:

'On the limited information before me the close relationship between plot 4 and the
Woodlands would not appear to maintain existing densities or the spaciousness of the
area. There being no flexibility over the layout of the dwellings the proposal would therefore
result in a cramped development that would be harmful to the character and appearance of
the area.'

Page 43



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

The current scheme proposes an almost identical housing layout that does not address the
Inspector's concern and therefore the cramped nature of the proposed scheme forms part
of the reason for refusal.

Although the site lies adjacent to the Copsewood Estate, Northwood Area of Special Local
Character, the adjoining rear ends of the back gardens which form the boundary of the
area of special character comprise dense woodland so that the proposed scheme would
not have any significant impact upon the character of the adjoining area.

There are no airport safeguarding issues raised by this application.

Not applicable to this application.

This is dealt with in Section 7.01 above.

Although this application is for outline permission, with only the means of access and
layout to be determined at this stage, the site would be capable of accommodating four
houses without adversely affecting the amenities of surrounding properties.
Notwithstanding the screening afforded by existing trees, the layout shows that the nearest
house would be sufficiently remote from adjoining properties and the agent has confirmed
that a separation distance of 22.9m would be retained between the rear elevation of the
house on Plot 4 and the rear elevation of the newly constructed 'Woodlands' flatted block.

The separation distances would ensure that the proposed houses would not result in any
overshadowing or appear unduly dominant from neighbouring properties and would not be
overlooked within a distance of 21m. As such, the proposal would comply with policies
BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and the Council's HDAS Residential Layouts.

Private amenity space

The rear amenity spaces provided would comply with the Council's minimum standards.
The house on Plot 1 would have an area of approximately 225m2, with Plot 2 having an
area of 525m2, Plot 3 would have an area of approximately 300m², with Plot 4 having an
area of 267m².

Amenities created for future occupiers

This outline application does not specify the proposed number of bedrooms, although the
indicative floor plans do suggest that 4 bedrooms would be provided. These are large
detached properties that would easily satisfy the National space standards in order to
achieve satisfactory living conditions for future occupiers.

No objections were raised by the Highway Engineer to the previous applications. The layout
of the houses suggests that adequate car parking to satisfy the Council's off-street car
parking standards could be provided and these details could have been controlled at the
reserved matters stage had the application not of been recommended for refusal, together
with details of the road extension.

Page 44



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Access and security matters are now largely covered by Building Regulations and
appropriate conditions could have been added had the application not of been
recommended for refusal.

See section 7.11.

Not applicable to this application.

The Council's Tree Officer advises that the scheme makes adequate provision for the long
term retention of the important trees on site and many others of lesser quality on this and
adjoining sites. Sufficient space is provided to provide additional planting and a landscaped
scheme. The Tree Officer advises that the impact of the development would be
acceptable, subject to the imposition of appropriate conditions. Had the application not of
been recommended for refusal, these conditions could have formed part of the officer
recommendation.

Not applicable to this outline application which is for 4 detached houses on their own
curtilages.

Energy efficiency would be dealt with by the Building Regulations.

Ecology

A Phase 1 Habitat survey was submitted with the application. The Council's Sustainability
Officer reviewed the report and has raised no objection subject to a condition requiring
detailed bat, reptile and mammal habitat and species surveys to be submitted and
approved prior to the commencement of development. A wildlife enhancement scheme
would also have been required. Appropriate conditions could have been recommended had
the application not of been recommended for refusal.

The site does not fall within a Flood Zone and therefore the proposed development is not at
potential risk of flooding.

The application site is not located within Hillingdon's Air Quality management Area and it is
considered that the proposal would not give rise to any significant noise or air quality issues
as compared to the surrounding situation.

As regards the comments raised by the individual consultees and petitioners, the scale of
development is not before the Council for consideration at this stage so that the impacts in
terms of privacy, sunlight and dominance and views (points (i), (ii), (iv) and (v)) are not
known, but that said, the scheme does maintain at least a 21m distance from the principal
elevations of adjoining properties so that the amenities of adjoining properties are unlikely to
be affected in terms of policies BE20, BE21 and BE24. In terms of points (iv) and (vii), the
increase in noise/activity and light pollution would be no greater than that deriving from
surrounding residential development so that further reasons for refusal on this ground
could not be justified and in terms of the light, appropriate measures could be put in place
to mitigate the impact on wildlife. Points (vi), (viii), (x), (xi), (xii), (xiii) and (xiv) have been
dealt with in the officer's report. As regards point (xv), this is not a planning matter that
would justify withholding permission. As regards point (ix), it is considered that the changes

Page 45



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.20

7.21

7.22

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

made to the scheme could not justify the LPA refusing to deal with it.

The Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on August 1st 2014 and
the Hillingdon CIL charge for residential developments is £95 per square metre of additional
floorspace. This is in addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of £35 per sq metre.

Not applicable to this site/scheme.

No other issues are raised by this planning application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned. 

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should

Page 46



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

This outline application is recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

NPPF (March 2012)
London Plan (March 2016)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts (July 2006)
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS 'Accessible Hillingdon' Supplementary Planning
Document (May 2013).

Richard Phillips 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 47



42

48

47

10
0

10
0a

1
2
9

1
2
7

G
L
Y

N
S

W
O

1 to
 3

97

Elm House

101

Oak House

11
0

GLYNSW
OOD PLACE

4
115

1Wildwood

Twin Oaks

95

Woodland

Heights

1 
to

 6

53

3

WOOD

111

10
6

CLOSE

121
1
2
5

1
2
5
a

1 
to

 8

1
7

1
5

123

57

1
3

10
2 95.4m

1 
to

 8

1 to 13

103

Woodlands

´

May 2017

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

Land to the rear of 

Robins Hearne & Littlewood,

Ducks Hill Road

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

41674/APP/2017/381

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 48



Agenda Item 8

Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



22

2

KEWFERRY DRIVE

25

81.7m

El Sub Sta

1
6

1
2

Glencairn

H
E

D
G

E
S

ID
E

 R
O

A
D

Cetlas

Highgate

High Meadow

Glenwood

33

Downside

Albuhera

17

86.6m

16

Endymion

FARM ROAD

Claremont

Croft Ham

´

May 2017

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

7 Hedgeside Road

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

38605/APP/2017/554

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

1 MANOR HOUSE DRIVE NORTHWOOD

Two storey building with habitable roofspace to consist of 6 x 2-bed flats with
associated amenity space and parking, involving demolition of existing
dwelling.

16/12/2016

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 27306/APP/2016/4520

Drawing Nos: Tree Survey, Impact Assessment and Method Statement
Paving Detail
16/3021/7
16/3021/8
16/3021/6
16/3021/3 Rev. A
16/3021/2
Location Plan
16/3021/1
16/3021/4
16/3021/5

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) states that development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fail to
harmonise with the existing street scene, and BE19 states the LPA will seek to ensure
that new development within residential areas complements or improves the amenity and
the character of the area.

The application seeks to demolish the existing dwelling and  permission for the erection of
a two storey replacement building with habitable roof space to include 6 x 2 bed (4 person)
self contained flats.

The proposed development by virtue of the design, scale and bulk is considered
unacceptable and would be out of keeping with the character and appearance of the street
scene and the neighbouring area. The proposal has also fails to achieve suitable living
conditions for future occupants and has failed to demonstrate that it can provide privacy to
the future occupants of the ground floor flats contrary to the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012)
and the London Plan 2015.

It is therefore is recommended for refusal.

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by reason of its size, scale, bulk and siting would represent a
visually unsympathetic form of development that would detract from the character,

1

2. RECOMMENDATION

17/01/2017Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 9

Page 59



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NON2

NON2

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

appearance and visual amenity of the street scene and the wider area. The proposal
would therefore be contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One -
Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies 3.5 and 7.4 of the
London Plan (2016) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Residential Layouts.

The proposal would provide an overall internal floor space for flat 6 of an unsatisfactory
size for the proposed 2-bed four person unit. The proposal would therefore give rise to a
substandard form of living accommodation to the detriment of the amenity of future
occupiers. The proposal is thus contrary to Policies BE19 and H7 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policy 3.5 and Table 3.3 of the
London Plan, The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016),
the Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
and the National Space Standards.

The proposed development comprises a communal amenity area, the use of which would
lead to an unacceptable level of overlooking, noise and disturbance to the ground floor
flats. The proposal would thus, be detrimental to the residential amenity of future
occupiers of the ground floor flats, contrary to Policies BE19, BE21 and BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - UDP Saved Policies (November 2012).

2

3

I59 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies1

2

INFORMATIVES

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site covers an area of approximately 900 square metres, which is located
in a corner plot to the North East of Manor House Drive at the junction with Ducks Hill
Road.  It currently comprises a large detached dwelling set within a spacious plot, which
fronts Ducks Hill Road although the access is to the side from Manor House Drive. 

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from the 'Saved'
UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and
other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service.
The submitted application form highlights that no pre-application advice was sought by the
Developer in advance of this application.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 60



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The street scene is residential in character and appearance comprising primarily large
detached individually designed properties, some of which are more recent redevelopments.

The application site lies within Developed Area, as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012) and is covered by TPO 444. The site has a PTAL rating of 1a which is
very poor.

27306/APP/2002/672 - Single storey front side and rear extension (approved)
27306/ E/96/0062 - Single storey side extension (approved)
27306/A/90/1560 - Attached garage (approved)
27306/79/1510 - Residential extension (approved)

4. Planning Policies and Standards

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks planning permission for the demolition of the existing dwelling and
the erection of a two storey building with habitable roof-space to provide 6 x 2 bed flats with
associated amenity space and parking.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

27306/79/1510

27306/A/90/1560

27306/APP/2002/672

27306/E/96/0062

1 Manor House Drive Northwood

72 Ducks Hill Road Northwood

1 Manor House Drive Northwood

1 Manor House Drive Northwood

Householder development - residential extension(P)

Erection of an attached garage at the side

ERECTION OF A SINGLE STOREY FRONT, SIDE AND REAR EXTENSION INCLUDING A NE

PORCH AND A FIRST FLOOR SIDE AND REAR EXTENSION AND A DETACHED GARAGE

Erection of a single storey side extension

20-11-1979

01-11-1990

24-07-2002

08-05-1996

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Approved

Approved

Approved

Approved

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 61



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

AM7

AM14

BE13

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

EM6

H3

H4

OE1

OE7

OE8

LPP 3.3

LPP 3.4

LPP 3.5

LPP 3.8

LPP 5.12

LPP 5.13

NPPF

HDAS-LAY

LDF-AH

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

(2012) Flood Risk Management

Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

Mix of housing units

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

(2016) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

(2016) Housing Choice

(2016) Flood risk management

(2016) Sustainable drainage

National Planning Policy Framework

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

Page 62



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

6. Consultations

Internal Consultees

Trees/Landscaping - There is a large protected Oak (T6) on the Southern corner of the site. This
tree could be detrimentally affected by construction-related activities / storage of material etc. In
order to show this scheme makes adequate provision for the protection and long terms retention of
this Oak, the following detail is required (in accordance with BS 5837:2012):
- A Tree Survey to categorize the trees on and off site.
- An Arboricultural Impact Assessment.
- A Tree Protection Plan to show tree to the retained will be protected.
- An Arboricultural Method Statement to show any incursion into the tree protection area and how
this will be addressed
Details of how the tree protection measures will be assessed before demolition/construction starts
and how tree protection will be supervised. A landscape scheme should also be submitted and any
new tree planting specifics should be provided.

These details have now been submitted and are acceptable.

Flood and Water Management - The site is in Flood Zone 1 and is at risk of surface water flooding in
accordance with the Environment Agency Flood Maps. The development needs to manage surface
water on site in order to reduce pressure on the main surface water sewer. Details for a scheme fro
the provision of sustainable water management can be conditioned for submission.

Highways - Manor House Drive is a local road on the Council's Road network but the site is on the
corner of Manor House Drive and Ducks Hill Road (A4180) which is a classified road. The site has a
PTAL value of 1a (poor) which suggests there will be a strong reliance on private cars for trip
making. There are scheduled bus services along Ducks Hill Road. The site has an existing wide
vehicular access off Manor House Drive. There are no local waiting restrictions in place. There is

External Consultees

6 neighbours were consulted for a period of 21 days expiring on the 9 February 2017. 

There were 3 responses raising the following issues: 
- I am not technically against the development as should this proceed I would do the same.
- I don't fully understand the plans but provided I/my garden is no more overlooked than currently I
don't have an issue.
- Loss of privacy.
- The existing side window facing Manor House Drive is not frosted however this was not in
accordance with the original redevelopment of the existing house.
- 1 parking space per flat seems low and could lead to additional on street parking, which would
increase congestion and be detrimental to highway safety.
- Overdevelopment.
- Bulk of the building out of character with the area.
- Adverse impact on the amenity of the neighbouring properties.
- We believe there was an underground spring to the rear of the existing building. Has this been
taken into consideration?

A petition objecting to the proposal was also submitted.

Northwood Residents Association - The proposal represents overdevelopment of the site, excessive
bulk of the building, out of character with the locality in general and Manor House Drive in particular,
overlooking of neighbouring properties and adverse effect on their amenity and will generate more
on-street vehicle parking for which there is no space.

Page 63



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

The NPPF has a requirement to encourage the effective use of land by re-using land. This
is an existing residential unit set in a spacious corner plot, which is considered to be a
brownfield site. 

The Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) HDAS: Residential Layouts, at paragraph
3.3 states that in relation to the redevelopment of large plots and infill sites currently used
for individual dwellings into flats, the redevelopment of more than 10% of properties on a
residential street is unlikely to be acceptable, including the houses which have been
converted into flats or other forms of housing.

The above document underpins and supports Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012), which
seeks to protect the impacts of flatted development on the character and amenity of
established residential areas. Whilst it is acknowledged that there have been a number of
redevelopments of sites along Ducks Hill Road, this development is situated on Manor
House Drive, where none of the properties have been re-developed for flatted
accommodation therefore the erection of flats in this location is acceptable in principle. 

The site lies within as established residential area and given the character of the
surrounding area, there is no in principle objection to the development of the site to provide
additional residential accommodation, subject to an appropriate density and design, and
the proposal being in accordance with all of the relevant planning policies and
supplementary guidance.

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (2016) seeks to ensure that the new development takes into
account local context and character, the design principles in Chapter 7 and public transport
capacity development should optimise housing output for different types of location within
the relative density range shown in Table 3.2. Development proposals which compromise
this policy should be resisted.

The density matrix, however, is only of limited value when looking at small scale
development such as that proposed with this application. In such cases, it is often more
appropriate to consider how the development harmonises with its surroundings and its
impact on adjoining occupiers.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

some local parking stress in Manor House Drive even though most properties have off-street car
parking. The proposal is to demolish the existing residence and construct a block of 6 flats with 6 car
parking spaces which will almost certainly result in further on-street car parking demand. This will
increase local parking stress as no visitor car parking is provided within the site. The proposals will
undoubtedly generate increased traffic in the local area but this is unlikely to be significant. It would
appear that the existing crossover is to be used as the basis of the new access off Manor House
Drive. The proposals contain a separate secure covered cycle store for 9 cycles which is supported.
There is also a separate refuse/recycling bins for residents within 10 m of the highway. On the basis
of the above comments I do not have significant concerns over this application.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 64



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.07

7.08

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
states that all new developments should achieve a high quality of design in all new
buildings and the public realm contributes to community cohesion and a sense of place.
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that the layout and appearance of new development should "harmonise with the
existing street scene or other features of the area." The NPPF (2011) notes the importance
of achieving design which is appropriate to its context stating that 'Permission should be
refused for development of poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for
improving the character and quality of an area and the way it functions.'

The proposed building measures a maximum of 16.8 m in width, 15.8 m in depth and 9.65
m in height. It comprises two sections, with a larger block situated adjacent to Manor
House Drive and the latter third of the building adjacent to no. 70 reduced in depth to 13.6
m with a height of 8.7 m. To the front there is proposed a two storey central projection
forming the main entrance, with a deeper front projection to the right (North East) level with
the adjacent property no. 70. To the left (South West) of the front elevation there is a half
hip gable feature with a two storey bay beneath replicated on the opposite front projection.
The proposal also includes two large dormer windows to the front and 3 to rear.

This is a substantial building, situated in a visually prominent corner position which spans
virtually the entire width of the plot, set back just 0.9 m from the side boundary with Manor
House Drive and 0.7 m from the boundary adjoining no. 70. Whilst it is acknowledged that
the existing house spans virtually the whole width of the plot, this includes two single storey
extensions either side with the main bulk of the dwelling set back 1.7 m from Manor House
Drive and 2.7 m from the shared boundary with no. 70. Also generally within the street
scene the height of the individual dwellings is between 8 - 8.5 m. It is acknowledged that
there has been redevelopment of other properties along Ducks Hill Road with some flatted
developments of two and a half stories being considerably higher than this; however these
are generally in much larger plots and set back significantly from the main road. The overall
bulk of the development is further exacerbated by the resultant roof form including two large
crown roof details. The overall scale and massing in a prominent position is considered
overbearing and visually intrusive. 

As such it is considered that the proposal would have a detrimental impact on the
character and appearance of the area and fails to comply with the aims of UDP Saved
Policies BE13, BE19 and HDAS in this regard.

In the Western side of the rear garden it is also proposed to erect an enclosed bike storey.
The building measures 4.5 m in width by 2.4 m in depth and has a pitched roof of 3.5 m. It
is set behind the existing high boundary wall and is relatively modest in scale and design.
Therefore in terms of appearance it is considered acceptable.

Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) seek to safeguard neighbouring residential amenity from
inappropriate development. HDAS advises that in order to ensure adequate daylight,
sunlight and privacy for the occupiers of the existing and proposed dwellings, a 45 degree
principle will be applied. This involves drawing a 45 degree line of site from the mid-point of
an existing or new habitable window. If the proposed building breaches that line it is unlikely
to be acceptable. HDAS further advises that an adequate distance should be maintained to
any area from which overlooking may occur and as a guide, not be less than 21 m between
facing habitable rooms.

Page 65



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09

7.10

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The proposed building maintains a similar front building line to the existing dwelling and
would not project beyond the front of the adjacent property at no. 70 Ducks Hill Road. To
the rear the building will extend approximately 4.7 m beyond the rear of that property,
separated by approximately 2.25 m. Although this would exceed the 4 m guideline for
residential extensions, the plans indicate the proposal would not compromise a 45 degree
line on site from the neighbouring property. To the West no. 76 Ducks Hill Road is situated
11 m to the side and separated by Manor House Drive. To the rear the nearest property no.
3 Manor House Drive faces the rear of the proposed building separated by approximately
28 m. It is noted the proposal does include two small windows to each side elevation but
these would serve bathroom windows and could be conditioned to be obscure glazed and
fixed shut. As such the proposal would comply with HDAS guidance and on balance it is
considered that the proposal would not result in a significant loss of amenity to the
occupiers of the adjoining properties. As such the proposal would be in accordance with
policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the UDP saved policies and HDAS Residential Layouts.

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. The
Mayor of London has adopted the new national technical standards through a minor
alteration to The London Plan.

The Housing Standards (Minor Alterations to the London Plan) March 2016 sets out the
minimum internal floor spaces required for developments in order to ensure that there is an
adequate level of amenity for existing and future occupants. The standards require a four
person 2 bed flat should have a minimum internal floor area of 70 sq m including 2 sq m of
internal storage. The proposed layouts indicate that whilst flats 1-5 would comply with this
standard flat 6 only provides a total floor area of 64 sq m. It is noted that the floor plans
indicate a single bed in one of the bedrooms in flat 6 suggesting a 3 person occupancy
however with a  floor area of 11.85 sq m this is capable of being occupied as a double
room and is assessed accordingly.  On balance it is therefore considered the proposal fails
to provide a satisfactory living environment for the future occupants in accordance with
Policy 3.5 of the London Plan 2016.

It is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms, would have an adequate outlook and
source of natural light, and therefore comply with the SPD: New Residential Layouts:
Section 4.9.

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Unitary Development Plan
Policies (November 2012) considers whether the traffic generated by the proposed
development is acceptable in terms of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows
and conditions of general highway or pedestrian safety.

Policy AM14 states that new development will only be permitted where it is in accordance
with the Council's adopted Car Parking Standards, although this policy predates the
National Planning Policy Framework. This requires the establishment of criteria to be
considered when setting local parking standards including the accessibility of the
development and the availability of and opportunities for public transport. The site has a
poor PTAL rating and would require the provision of 1.5 car parking spaces plus 1 cycle
space per unit. The supporting plans identify a parking area, which can provide 6 car
spaces and a separate cycle store for 9 bicycles. The Highways Officer has advised that
there are no local waiting restrictions in place. There is some local parking stress in Manor

Page 66



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning Obligations

House Drive even though most properties have off-street car parking. The proposal will
almost certainly result in further on-street car parking demand. This will increase local
parking stress as no visitor car parking is provided within the site. The proposals will
undoubtedly generate increased traffic in the local area but this is unlikely to be significant.
On the basis of the above comments they do not have significant concerns over this
application. Therefore, the proposals are considered to be compliant to the Council's
policies AM7 and AM14 of the Council's Local Plan Part 2.

The Council's HDAS guidelines require a minimum of 25 sq.m for a two bedroom flat. This
would give an overall requirement of 150 sq m. The proposal is set in a large plot which
provides well in excess of this requirement and also a roof terrace with access for flats 4
and 5 and a front balcony including general access. However no details have been
submitted for private patio/garden areas particularly adjacent to the windows of habitable
rooms for the ground floor flats and also for the roof terrace, raising concerns over the level
of privacy for the occupiers of those units. It is therefore considered the proposal is
contrary to policy BS24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Adopted Local Plan, Policy BE1 seeks high quality design of the built and external
environment.  Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and
landscape features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it
is appropriate. The site lies within the area covered by Tree Preservation Order No. 444.
The Tree/Landscape Officer has advised that there is a large protected Oak (T6) on the
Southern corner of the site. This tree could be detrimentally affected by construction-
related activities or storage of material. A revised Tree Survey, Arboricultural Impact
Assessment and Method Statement has been submitted and the Officer has confirmed
there are no further objections.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

The Flood and Water Management Officer has advised that the site is at risk of surface
water flooding in accordance with the Environment Agency Flood Maps. The development
needs to manage surface water on site in order to reduce pressure on the main surface
water sewer. Details for a scheme for the provision of sustainable water management can
be conditioned for submission if all other aspects of the proposal were acceptable.

Not applicable to this application.

Most issues raised have been addressed appropriately in the report. It is noted that a
neighbour believed an underground spring was situated to the rear of the property, however
this has not been confirmed and the Drainage Officer has not raised this as a source of
concern. Other drainage issues are addressed under section 7.17.

Page 67



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.21

7.22

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

The proposal would not necessitate the provision of planning obligations; however based
on the information before officers at this stage it would be liable for payments under the
Community Infrastructure Levy.

Not applicable to this application.

No details for a bin storage facilities have been provided but this could be conditioned if all
other aspects of the proposal were acceptable.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned. 

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.

Page 68



North Planning Committee - 

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The proposal is considered to be an intrusive addition to the street scene which fails to
respect the character and appearance of the surrounding area. It also fails to achieve
suitable living conditions and fails to demonstrate that it can provide a satisfactory level of
residential amenity to future occupiers.

It is therefore recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan (2016)
The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)
Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Extensions
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon
National Planning Policy Framework

Liz Arnold 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 69



Kashiba House

Bothkennar

Tudor House

High Trees

and Actresses)

Denville Hall

(Home for Aged Actors

K
en

d
al

l M
a
no

r

1
 t
o
 9

Woodvale

DU
C

K
'S

 H
IL

L R
O

A
D

The Firs

69.5m

White Oak

El Sub Sta

Oakwood

7
3

Mal

80
80

a
O

PU
LEN

S PLA
C
E

17
6

4

3

1

1

70

Edgewood

2

4

1

TEA
L D

R
IVE

66

2

3
76

M
A
N
O

R
 H

O
U
S
E
 D

R
IV

E

3

 H
IL

L 
R
O

A
D

8

90

89

´

May 2017

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

1 Manor House Drive

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

27306/APP/2016/4520

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 70



North Planning Committee - 30th May 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

THE OLD SHOOTING BOX HIGH ROAD EASTCOTE 

Repositioning of existing vehicle entrance and associated groundworks to
existing residential property.

13/03/2017

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 20652/APP/2017/905

Drawing Nos: SH-165CW-100R01-RevB-Heritage StatementSml

PL-00 - Garden As Exist Rev-A

PL-01 - Garden Layout Rev-A

PL-09 - Elevations Rev-A

PL-04 - Location Plan Rev-A

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

The site comprises a Grade II Listed Building which is sited on the northern part of High
Road. To the south of is the B466 (High Road Eastcote). The surrounding area is
characterised by buildings set in generous plots which feature mature trees and hedges.
The site lies within the Eastcote Village Conservation Area.

The proposal seeks to relocate the driveway further to the east to improve visibility and
safety for vehicles and pedestrians. The application also seeks to carry out repair work to
the landscaping fronting the property.

Not applicable 26th April 2017

Advertisement and Site Notice2.

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

A site notice was displayed between 05 April 2017 and 26 April 2017. 14 neighbouring

20652/B/94/0206 The Old Shooting Box High Road Eastcote 

Alteration to front ground-floor elevation (Application for Listed Building Consent)

22-07-1994Decision Date: Approved

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Planning History

3.

1.1 Site and Locality

1.2 Proposed Scheme

Comments on Public Consultations

13/03/2017Date Application Valid:

Appeal:

Agenda Item 10

Page 71



North Planning Committee - 30th May 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.HE1

PT1.BE1

(2012) Heritage

(2012) Built Environment

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

NPPF1

NPPF11

NPPF12

NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the natural environment

NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

Part 2 Policies:

residents were consulted on the application. 1 no responses were received which are
summarised below:

Eastcote Residents Association

These alterations are required for safe access to the premises and then that all works
detailed, as per annotations on the drawings, are being discussed and agreed with the
relevant Council departments, Eastcote Residents' Association has no objections to this
application.

INTERNAL CONSULTEES

Access

No objection to the application.

Conservation

No objection in principle to the application subject to the following:

- details relating materials for patio;
- details relating to the proposed gates; and
- granite sets to be used to mark driveway/pavement divide.

Highways

This application is for the change of access arrangements on a property on High Road
Eastcote. High Road (B466) is a busy classified road and the existing access has poor
sight lines as a result of structures and landscaping. The road is narrow and the existing
access is close to a neighbouring brick wall that interrupts sight distance. The proposals
involve changing the location of the access/egress point so that sight distances are
improved along with the internal vehicular circulation arrangements. The applicant would be
responsible for the costs of any new crossover changes along with re-instatement that is
necessary as part of the proposals. On the basis of the above comments I have no
significant highway concerns over the above proposals.

4.

Page 72



North Planning Committee - 30th May 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

LPP 5.3

LPP 6.13

LPP 7.2

LPP 7.4

LPP 7.8

LPP 7.13

LPP 7.21

BE8

BE9

BE13

BE18

BE19

BE20

BE38

OE1

(2016) Sustainable design and construction

(2016) Parking

(2016) An inclusive environment

(2016) Local character

(2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

(2016) Safety, security and resilience to emergency

(2016) Trees and woodlands

Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings

Listed building consent applications for alterations or extensions

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new
planting and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the
local area

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES 

The main issues relating to this application is conservation and highway and pedestrian
safety.

Conservation

Section 16 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states that
in considering whether to grant listed building consent for any works the local planning
authority shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting
or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. Section 66
of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires 'special
regard' to be given to the desirability of preserving a listed building or its setting.

Section 72 of the (Planning Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act) 1990 states the
statutory duty of Local Planning Authorities in regard to development affecting conservation
areas 'special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the
character or appearance of that area.' 

Policy BE8 of the Local Plan: Part Two (November 2012) requires alterations to external
features of a listed building to harmonise with their surroundings.

The proposal would affect the setting of the listed building, however the proposal is
sensitively designed to sit appropriately within the setting of the listed building and Eastcote
Village Conservation Area. The wall would be repaired where necessary with reclaimed
brick. The proposal also includes repair work to brickwork and landscaping around the
house, the proposal is being carried out sensitively to ensure it sits comfortably within the
setting of the Listed Building and Conservation Area. The proposal is therefore considered
acceptable in this regard.

Page 73



North Planning Committee - 30th May 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

COM3

COM4

COM28

Time Limit

Accordance with Approved Plans

Visibility Splays - Pedestrian

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans:

SH-165CW-100R01-RevB-Heritage StatementSml
PL-00 - Garden As Exist Rev-A
PL-01 - Garden Layout Rev-A
PL-09 - Elevations Rev-A
PL-04 - Location Plan Rev-A

 and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

The access for the proposed car parking shall be provided with those parts of 2.4m x

1

2

3

RECOMMENDATION6.

Highways

Policy AM8 prioritises pedestrian safety and seeks to minimise diversions of pedestrian
routes. This application is for the change of access arrangements on a property on High
Road Eastcote. High Road (B466) is a busy classified road and the existing access has
poor sight lines as a result of structures and landscaping. The road is narrow and the
existing access is close to a neighbouring brick wall that interrupts sight distance. The
proposals involve changing the location of the access/egress point so that sight distances
are improved along with the internal vehicular circulation arrangements. The applicant
would be responsible for the costs of any new crossover changes along with reinstatement
that is necessary as part of the proposals. 

Conclusion

The proposal has minimal impact of the setting of the Listed Building and on the character
and appearance of Eastcote Village Conservation Area. The proposals would improve site
lines and highway safety compared to the existing access arrangements. The proposal is
therefore recommended for approval.

Page 74



North Planning Committee - 30th May 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

B16

RES8

Details/Samples to be Submitted

Tree Protection

2.4m pedestrian visibility splays which can be accommodated within the site in both
directions and shall be maintained free of all obstacles to the visibility between heights of
0.6m and 2.0m above the level of the adjoining highway.

REASON
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with policy AM7 Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

Development shall not begin until details relating materials for patio, details relating to the
proposed gates and granite sets to mark driveway/pavement divide have been submitted
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE9 and BE13 of the Local Plan: Part Two (November 2012).

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height
of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.
The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:
2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;
2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;
2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.
2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.
2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

4

5

1

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,

Page 75



North Planning Committee - 30th May 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

2

including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for
the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right
to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of
the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of
discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy
for London consolidated with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

1           The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to 
             all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
             policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
             unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
             Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
             life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14

(prohibition of discrimination).

Standard Informatives 

NPPF1

NPPF11

NPPF12

LPP 5.3

LPP 6.13

LPP 7.2

LPP 7.4

LPP 7.8

LPP 7.13

LPP 7.21

BE8

BE9

BE13

BE18

BE19

BE20

BE38

OE1

NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the natural environment

NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

(2016) Sustainable design and construction

(2016) Parking

(2016) An inclusive environment

(2016) Local character

(2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

(2016) Safety, security and resilience to emergency

(2016) Trees and woodlands

Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings

Listed building consent applications for alterations or extensions

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the
local area

Page 76



North Planning Committee - 30th May 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NPPF1

NPPF11

NPPF12

LPP 5.3

LPP 6.13

LPP 7.2

LPP 7.4

LPP 7.8

LPP 7.13

LPP 7.21

BE8

BE9

BE13

BE18

BE19

BE20

BE38

OE1

NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the natural environment

NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

(2016) Sustainable design and construction

(2016) Parking

(2016) An inclusive environment

(2016) Local character

(2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

(2016) Safety, security and resilience to emergency

(2016) Trees and woodlands

Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings

Listed building consent applications for alterations or extensions

New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision
of new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding
properties and the local area

3          You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the
            approved drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must
            be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any 
            deviation from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local 
            Planning Authority.

4          You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
            by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
            application will have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

2

PT1.HE1

PT1.BE1

(2012) Heritage

(2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

Part 1 Policies:

Page 77



North Planning Committee - 30th May 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

            development that results in any form of encroachment.

5          Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
            Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
            such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
            or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
            installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
            works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
            Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
            completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
            approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and
            advice, contact - Planning, Enviroment and Community Services, Building Control,
            3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

6          You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension. 
            When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your
            neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at 
            any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
            vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved 
            are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
            adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
            control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
            Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
            contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,
            Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

7          The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal
            agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
             - carry out work to an existing party wall;
             - build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
             - in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining
               building.
            Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building
            owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. 
            The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any
            necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by 
            the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to
            comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found
            in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,
            available free of charge from the Planning, Enviroment and Community Services
            Reception, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8          Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
            property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission 
            does not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the 
            specific consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you
            should consult a solicitor.

9          Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
            Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
            particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

Page 78



North Planning Committee - 30th May 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Zenab Haji-Ismail 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

            A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the
            hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours 
            of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
            Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

            B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
            British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

            C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public 
            health nuisance.

            D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

            You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02,
            Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek 
            prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate 
            any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working
            hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to
            adjoining premises.

10        You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
            approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
            pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take 
            appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in 
            action being taken under the Highways Act.

11        To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
            methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
            resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,
            including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
            insulation.

12        You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
            approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during
            construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
            or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made 
            good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. For further
            information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central 
            Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
            Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Page 79



C
F

Q
U

IN
T

IN
 C

L
O

S
E

3

2

The Grange Barn

Ingleby

Orinis

Drain

Litcombe

Ramin

L
in

d
en

 C
o
ttag

e

1
8

The Anchorage

Shooting Box

P
IK

E
'S

 E
N

D

The Grange

1
6

1

8

Apple Yard

Eastfield

Braeside

11

Well

se is Altered

Quintin House

Riv
er

66

44.2m

Pin
n

Allo
tm

ent G
ard

ens

Grange Cottage

1

El Sub Sta

Westcott

CS

1
5

LB

Ivanh

Butts Mead

1
3

The Old

Ashover

45.4m

PIKE'S END

H
IG

H
 R

O
A
D
 E

A
S
TC

O
T
E

C
atlin

s

The

´

May 2017

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

The Old Shooting Box

High Road

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

20652/APP/2017/905

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 80



North Planning Committee - 30th May 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

THE OLD SHOOTING BOX HIGH ROAD EASTCOTE 

Re-positioning of existing vehicle entrance and associated ground works to
existing residential dwelling (Listed Building Consent).

13/03/2017

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 20652/APP/2017/906

Drawing Nos: SH-165CW-100R01-RevB-Heritage StatementSml

PL-00 - Garden As Exist Rev-A

PL-01 - Garden Layout Rev-A

PL-09 - Elevations Rev-A

PL-04 - Location Plan Rev-A

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

The site comprises a Grade II Listed Building which is sited on the northern part of High
Road. To the south of is the B466 (High Road Eastcote). The surrounding area is
characterised by buildings set in generous plots which feature mature trees and hedges.
The site lies within the Eastcote Village Conservation Area.

The proposal seeks to relocate the driveway further to the east to improve visibility and
safety for vehicles and pedestrians. The application also seeks to carry out repair work to
the existing property and landscaping.This is a listed building application required due to
changes to the boundary walls.

Not applicable 

Advertisement and Site Notice2.

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

20652/B/94/0206 The Old Shooting Box High Road Eastcote 

Alteration to front ground-floor elevation (Application for Listed Building Consent)

22-07-1994Decision Date: Approved

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Planning History

3.

1.1 Site and Locality

1.2 Proposed Scheme

Comments on Public Consultations

13/03/2017Date Application Valid:

Appeal:

Agenda Item 11

Page 81



North Planning Committee - 30th May 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.HE1

PT1.BE1

(2012) Heritage

(2012) Built Environment

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

NPPF1

NPPF11

NPPF12

LPP 7.4

LPP 7.8

LPP 7.9

BE8

BE9

BE12

NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the natural environment

NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

(2016) Local character

(2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

(2016) Heritage-led regeneration

Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings

Listed building consent applications for alterations or extensions

Proposals for alternative use (to original historic use) of statutorily listed
buildings

Part 2 Policies:

The application was consulted on between 23/03/2017 and 13/04/2017. An objection was
received from 1 neighbouring resident and 1 letter of comment from the Conservation Area
Panel which are summarised below. 

Objection

- Concerns raised in relation to the proposed impact on trees and shrubs;
- Not aware of issues of safety or congestion, other buildings have similar issues;
-  Proposed gate would be visually imposing and overbearing;
- Applicant should explore exploring and using a drain connecting to River Pinn;
- Concerns relating to noise, dust and disturbance;
- Structural damage could be caused because of construction;
-  Level of excavation is not stated;
- The air vent is clear (and not blocked) and above ground. Therefore, it is not necessary
and relevant that digging and excavation of the side of the house and the rear of the
property adjacent to our fence/ wall is to resolve the problems of the air vent blockage. 

Officer comment: The proposal includes digging  upto 150mm to carry out repair work to
the existing house, this is not considered to be harmful to the listed building or the setting of
the listed building. The works are considered to be necessary to improve highways safety
and the details of the proposed gates is subject to a condition. 

Eastcote Conservation Panel

The proposed work has been discussed with the Conservation Officer LBH and appears to
be necessary to protect the listed building and to remove safety issues with access to the
grounds. The Conservation panel does not have any objections.

4.

Page 82



North Planning Committee - 30th May 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

LB1

COM4

Time Limit (3 years) - Listd Building Consent

Accordance with Approved Plans

The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the
date of this consent.

REASON
To comply with Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers:

SH-165CW-100R01-RevB-Heritage StatementSml
PL-00 - Garden As Exist Rev-A
PL-01 - Garden Layout Rev-A
PL-09 - Elevations Rev-A
PL-04 - Location Plan Rev-A

and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

1

2

RECOMMENDATION6.

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES 

This report considers the impact of the proposed work on the Grade II Listed building.

Policy BE8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
requires external and internal alternations to harmonise with their surroundings. Policy BE8
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 (November 2012) only permits alterations to the listed
building where no damage is caused to the buildings and internal and external works are in
keeping with the appearance of the listed building. 

Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Policies (November 2012) require
developments to harmonise with features in the area.

The Council's Conservation Officer has raised no objections in principle to the proposed
works under this application as the most significant features are retained. The changes
under this application are for safety reasons or as repair work. The applicant has noted that
the wall would be repaired in reclaimed brick to match the existing which has been
considered acceptable. 

The proposed alterations under this application are sympathetic to the Grade II listed
building and it is considered that the proposed changes proposed under this application
would not cause harm to the historic fabric, character and appearance of the Grade II
Listed Building.

The proposed scheme complies with Policies  BE8, BE9 and BE10, of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two (November 2012). The application for Listed Building Consent is therefore
recommended for approval.

Page 83



North Planning Committee - 30th May 2017

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

B16 Details/Samples to be Submitted

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

Development shall not begin until details and/or samples of all materials, colours and
finishes to be used on all external surfaces have been submitted to and approved by the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance.

3

1

2

INFORMATIVES

Zenab Haji-Ismail 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

The decision to GRANT listed building consent has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT listed building consent has been taken having regard to
the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012)
set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including The London Plan - The Spatial Development
Strategy for London (2016) and national guidance.

NPPF1

NPPF11

NPPF12

LPP 7.4

LPP 7.8

LPP 7.9

BE8

BE9

BE12

NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the natural environment

NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

(2016) Local character

(2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

(2016) Heritage-led regeneration

Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings

Listed building consent applications for alterations or extensions

Proposals for alternative use (to original historic use) of statutorily listed
buildings

Page 84



C
F

Q
U

IN
T

IN
 C

L
O

S
E

3

2

The Grange Barn

Ingleby

Orinis

Drain

Litcombe

Ramin

L
in

d
en

 C
o
ttag

e

1
8

The Anchorage

Shooting Box

P
IK

E
'S

 E
N

D

The Grange

1
6

1

8

Apple Yard

Eastfield

Braeside

11

Well

se is Altered

Quintin House

Riv
er

66

44.2m

Pin
n

Allo
tm

ent G
ard

ens

Grange Cottage

1

El Sub Sta

Westcott

CS

1
5

LB

Ivanh

Butts Mead

1
3

The Old

Ashover

45.4m

PIKE'S END

H
IG

H
 R

O
A
D
 E

A
S
TC

O
T
E

C
atlin

s

The

´

May 2017

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

The Old Shooting Box

High Road

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

20652/APP/2017/906

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

Page 87

PART II by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13

Page 93

PART II by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14

Page 99

PART II by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Annex

Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



4
2

7

50.3m

50 65

50.0m

51

1
6

19

2
4

11

3
3

3
8

2
6

B
IS

H
O

P
 R

A
M

S
E
Y
 C

L
O

S
E

6

82

Post

1
4

2

64
60a

1

66

2

45.7m

1
7

84

G
L
E

N
A

L
L
A

 R
O

A
D

Posts

11

15

F
F

R
H

10

9

2

3
5

1
c

2
c

2
d

2
a

2
b

15a

L
A

R
N

E
 R

O
A

D

2
7

3
2

17

1
6

25

1

1
5

´

May 2017

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 

the authority of the Head of Committee

Services pursuant to section 47 of the 

Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant 

exception to copyright.

Thurga,

19 Glengalla Road

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

43884/APP/2017/401

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



5
1WESTMINSTER CLOSE

1513

3858 60

50 52

37

310

119

8
12

57 6
9 4

13 15

Posts

Marchbank House

31
27a

29

Rosecroft

78.0m

CYGNET CLOSE

52

25 10

21

22

6

48

18

19

9

44

40

MALLARD WAY

48

1
El Sub Sta

Cedar

5

1 to 8

Grange

12

3

37

38a
38c

4

3

DUCK'S HILL ROAD

38

37a

5

36

Court

CYGNET CLOSE

28

38

EATON GATE 7
727

2
1

19

35

17

5

8
2

7

31
7

34

5

37b

27

38b

34

39

Pond

1

MUSCOVY PLACE
8 44

´

May 2017

Site Address:Notes:
For identification purposes only.

Site boundary
This copy has been made by or with the authority of the Head of CommitteeServices pursuant to section 47 of the Copyright, Designs and PatentsAct 1988 (the Act).Unless the Act provides a relevant exception to copyright.

38 - 40 Ducks Hill Road

North

Planning Application Ref:
Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDONResidents ServicesPlanning SectionCivic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UWTelephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
71798/APP/2017/803

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100019283 Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



42

48

47

100
100a

129
127

GLY
NSW

OOD
 PL

1 to 3

97

Elm House

101

Oak House

110

GLYNSWOOD PLACE

4
115 1Wildwood

Twin Oaks

95

WoodlandHeights

1 to 6

53

3

FRINGEWOOD

111

106

CLOSE

121
125

125a

1 to 8

17
15

123

57

13

102 95.4m

1 to 8

1 to 13103 Woodlands

´

May 2017

Site Address:Notes:
For identification purposes only.

Site boundary
This copy has been made by or with the authority of the Head of CommitteeServices pursuant to section 47 of the Copyright, Designs and PatentsAct 1988 (the Act).Unless the Act provides a relevant exception to copyright.

Land to the rear of Robins Hearne & Littlewood,Ducks Hill Road

North

Planning Application Ref:
Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDONResidents ServicesPlanning SectionCivic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UWTelephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
41674/APP/2017/381

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100019283 Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



22

2

KEWFERRY DRIVE25

81.7m

El Sub Sta
16

12

Glencairn

HED
GES

IDE
 RO

AD

Cetlas
Highgate

High Meadow

Glenwood

33

Downside

Albuhera

17

86.6m

16

Endymion

FARM ROAD

Claremont

Croft Ham

´

May 2017

Site Address:Notes:
For identification purposes only.

Site boundary
This copy has been made by or with the authority of the Head of CommitteeServices pursuant to section 47 of the Copyright, Designs and PatentsAct 1988 (the Act).Unless the Act provides a relevant exception to copyright.

7 Hedgeside Road

North

Planning Application Ref:
Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDONResidents ServicesPlanning SectionCivic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UWTelephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
38605/APP/2017/554

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100019283 Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Kashiba House

Bothkennar

Tudor House

High Trees

and Actresses)
Denville Hall(Home for Aged Actors

Kend
all M

anor
1 to 

9

Woodvale

DUCK'S HILL ROAD

The Firs

69.5m

White Oak

El Sub Sta

Oakwood

73

Mallards

80
80a

OPULENS PLACE
17

6
4

3
1

1

70

Edgewood

2

4

1
TEAL DRIVE

66

2

3
76

MANOR HOUSE DRIVE

3

DUCK'S HILL R
OAD

8
90

89

´

May 2017

Site Address:Notes:
For identification purposes only.

Site boundary
This copy has been made by or with the authority of the Head of CommitteeServices pursuant to section 47 of the Copyright, Designs and PatentsAct 1988 (the Act).Unless the Act provides a relevant exception to copyright.

1 Manor House Drive

North

Planning Application Ref:
Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDONResidents ServicesPlanning SectionCivic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UWTelephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
27306/APP/2016/4520

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100019283 Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



CF
QUINTIN CLOSE

3

2
The Grange Barn

Ingleby

Orinis

Drain

Litcombe

Ramin

Linden Cottage

18

The Anchorage

Shooting Box

PIKE'S END

The Grange
16

1

8

Apple Yard

Eastfield

Braeside

11

Well

Case is Altered

Quintin House

River
66

44.2m

Pinn

Allotment Gardens

Grange Cottage

1

El Sub Sta

Westcott

CS

15

LB

Ivanhoe

Butts Mead
13

The Old

Ashover

45.4m
PIKE'S END

HIGH ROAD EASTCOTE

Catlins

The

´

May 2017

Site Address:Notes:
For identification purposes only.

Site boundary
This copy has been made by or with the authority of the Head of CommitteeServices pursuant to section 47 of the Copyright, Designs and PatentsAct 1988 (the Act).Unless the Act provides a relevant exception to copyright.

The Old Shooting BoxHigh Road

North

Planning Application Ref:
Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDONResidents ServicesPlanning SectionCivic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UWTelephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
20652/APP/2017/905

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100019283 Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



CF
QUINTIN CLOSE

3

2
The Grange Barn

Ingleby

Orinis

Drain

Litcombe

Ramin

Linden Cottage

18

The Anchorage

Shooting Box

PIKE'S END

The Grange
16

1

8

Apple Yard

Eastfield

Braeside

11

Well

Case is Altered

Quintin House

River
66

44.2m

Pinn

Allotment Gardens

Grange Cottage

1

El Sub Sta

Westcott

CS

15

LB

Ivanhoe

Butts Mead
13

The Old

Ashover

45.4m
PIKE'S END

HIGH ROAD EASTCOTE

Catlins

The

´

May 2017

Site Address:Notes:
For identification purposes only.

Site boundary
This copy has been made by or with the authority of the Head of CommitteeServices pursuant to section 47 of the Copyright, Designs and PatentsAct 1988 (the Act).Unless the Act provides a relevant exception to copyright.

The Old Shooting BoxHigh Road

North

Planning Application Ref:
Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH OF HILLINGDONResidents ServicesPlanning SectionCivic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UWTelephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
20652/APP/2017/906

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100019283 Page 178


	Agenda
	5 Thurga, 19 Glenalla Road - 43884/APP/2017/401
	6 38 & 40 Ducks Hill Road - 71798/APP/2017/803
	7 Land to the rear of Robins Hearne & Littlewood, Ducks Hill Road - 41674/APP/2017/381
	8 7 Hedgeside Road - 38605/APP/2017/554
	9 1 Manor House Drive - 27306/APP/2016/4520
	10 The Old Shooting Box, High Road - 20652/APP/2017/905
	11 The Old Shooting Box, High Road - 20652/APP/2017/906
	12 Enforcement Report
	13 Enforcement Report
	14 Enforcement Report
	PART I - Plans for North Planning Committee

